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Submission statement

Submission statement

Hon. Alan Carpenter
Minister for Education and Training
12th Floor, Dumas House
2 Havelock Street
WEST PERTH   WA   6000

Dear Minister,

In accordance with Section 54 of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 and
Section 66 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, we have pleasure in submitting
for your information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of C.Y. O’Connor
College of TAFE for the year ending 31 December 2004.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial
Administration and Audit Act 1985 and the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996.

Alison Woodman (Chair) Peter Mahler
Governing Council Managing Director
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
28 February 2005 28 February 2005
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Statement from the Chair of

the Governing Council

As Chair of the Governing Council I am in the privileged position
of seeing and experiencing the operations and achievements
of the College.

In 2004 the College has provided training services to over four
thousand students. These students are spread over the vast
region we know as the Wheatbelt, and include external students
from across the State of Western Australia.

The training that these students have successfully completed
underpins the development of the Wheatbelt in many ways.  It
contributes to a sustainable future for the Wheatbelt.
Sustainability involves meeting the needs of current and future
generations through an integration of environmental protection,
social advancement and economic prosperity.  The global
debate has shown that integrating the environment, society and
the economy remains an enormous challenge.

Individuals, businesses and governments everywhere are now searching for new approaches to
economic development that contribute to the environment and society, without degrading them
over the longer term.   This challenge provides us with the basis of hope for the future and a vision
for a better quality of life in Western Australia and in the Wheatbelt region.  C.Y. O’Connor College
of TAFE shares this goal and is confident that we can assist in achieving it, and benefit from the
opportunities that sustainability brings.

The College is in a unique position to support the pursuit of sustainability in the Wheatbelt and it is
essential that we lead by example in the adoption of practices and behaviour that are consistent
with sustainability.  We have already made significant progress in adopting sustainable practices,
however the transition to a sustainable future is a long process that requires continual rethinking of
the way we live, use resources and progress the way in which we do business in the region.

The College has embraced sustainability in its management and in the provision of its services.  In
providing excellence in Vocational Education and Training we will be leading the Wheatbelt into a
sustainable future.  By providing lifelong and life wide learning opportunities to the region, we are
fostering social advancement, economic prosperity and environmental sustainability.

Since the College gained autonomy in 2001 we have created a highly respected reputation for the
quality and delivery of our training services.  Our graduates are poised to carry the fine reputation
of the College forward into their local communities.

Alison Woodman
Chair
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Membership of the Interim

Governing Council

Alison Woodman  is
Chair of the Governing
Council and Principal of
Merredin Senior High
School.

Peter Stubbs is the
Chief Executive
Officer of Moora Shire
Council.

Heidi Astbury is a staff
representative and
Principal Lecturer at C.Y.
O’Connor College of
TAFE in Narrogin.

Steven Pollard is Deputy
Chair of the Governing
Council and Proprietor of
SB Pollard Accountants in
Northam. He is also
involved in several
community organisations
as a volunteer.

Peter Mahler is
Managing Director of C.Y.
O’Connor College of
TAFE and Deputy Chair
of the Australian Grains
Institute.

Damien Martin is the
Assistant Director of the
Wheatbelt Development
Commission in Northam.

Jennifer Kitchin is
the Chief Executive
Officer of Essential
Personnel in Northam.

Cheryl Hugall is a
journalist and student
representative from
York.

Peter Trefort is the
Managing Director of
Hillside Meats in
Narrogin.

Suzanne Waters is an
Advanced Skills Lecturer in
Children’s Services at C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE.
She is also a State School
Teachers Union W.A.
Representative.

Olive Bennell is an
Aboriginal and
Islander Education
Officer in Brookton
(No photograph available)

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE was established as an
autonomous institution, in accordance with section 35 of
the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996, effective
from 1 January 2001.

Regulations to effect the placement of C.Y. O’Connor
College of TAFE into Schedule 2 of the Public Sector
Management Act 1994 were published in the Government
Gazette on 29 December 2000.

The College is a Statutory Authority with a Governing
Council responsible to the Minister for Training.

The Governing Council has the authority, conferred by
legislation, to perform the following functions:

• Prepare a College Training Profile for the approval
of the Minister and when required by the Minister.

• Develop and implement strategic and management
plans for the College.

• Ensure that College courses, programs and services
are responsive to, and meet the needs of students,
industry and the community.

• Ensure that the College’s commitments under its
Resource Agreement and any other contractual
arrangements are met.
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2004 has been a year of consolidation and innovation for C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE.

This year, the College was a finalist in both the Pretzel Logic Access & Equity Award at the Western
Australian Training Excellence Awards and the Best Regional Program Award for the Adult Learners’
Week Awards. These nominations have highlighted our commitment to the individual needs of the
diverse community comprising the Wheatbelt Region.

It saw development and implementation of a Business Plan aimed at ensuring the long-term
sustainability and growth of the College. This is currently being monitored and the basis of ongoing
discussion with the Department of Education and Training.

Our state’s “Creating the Future” priorities continue to be addressed and met constructively in
retention in training of the 15–19 year-old cohort. In particular: 2003’s successful implementation
and delivery of Year 10 Aboriginal School Based Traineeships provided strong foundations for this
year’s program. We have dedicated resources to the task of identifying, creating and communicating
education and training pathways from High School and Agricultural Colleges to TAFE and University,
with work continuing into 2005. This year also saw the appointment of two senior lecturing staff to
develop a Youth Advantage Strategy for the Wheatbelt region which will be implemented in 2005.

Continued efforts to nurture existing and new alliances with industry, business and community
groups have strengthened the College’s links with the region. Ties with the Department of Agriculture
have been reinforced through increased commercial activity. Alliances have further strengthened
between CYOC and Primary Industries such as Pig Production, Grains and Aquaculture, and with
local trades industry including Boekeman Machinery, Hutton & Northey and Midalia Steel, and
collaboration with CBH, Wesfarmers and Springfield Waters Aquaculture continues.

Through projects such as the Inland Saline Aquaculture Demonstration Farm at Northam and the
Salmon Gum Conservation Nursery at Moora, C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is demonstrating a
commitment to innovation and to the sustainability of the Wheatbelt region. An important event this
year was the opening of the ISA Demonstration Facility by Minister for Agriculture; Forestry and
Fisheries; The Midwest, Wheatbelt and Great Southern, The Hon. Kim Chance MLC in October.
The Salmon Gums Nursery this year surpassed expected production by some 20,000 seedlings
and was instrumental in providing local provenance for landcare projects.

The College has also focussed on technological improvement. In 2004 the College commenced
online enrolments, a streamlined, customer-focussed enrolment process for Profile courses and
increased delivery through WebCT for a range of courses including Business, Information Technology
and Assessment and Workplace Training.

Our students remain the lifeblood of the College and continue to strive for excellence in their studies.
It has given me great pleasure to be present at several student graduations in 2004 where their
hard work could be recognised by friends, family and the community. This year’s survey of Student
Satisfaction conducted by Market Equity found 42% of our students to be very satisfied with their
training, 6% greater than the state average. The survey also found only 9% of our students to be
dissatisfied with their training, a figure comparable to the state average.

This College services an area equivalent in size to the state of Victoria. This requires flexibility,
innovation and dedication across the college and I thank all staff for their contributions. The ongoing
success of the College is a direct reflection of their efforts and I commend them. I also acknowledge
the tireless effort and guidance of the Governing Council, chaired by Alison Woodman, Principal of
Merredin Senior High School.

Peter Mahler
Managing Director

From the Managing Director

From the Managing Director
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Strategic Directions

VISION
The Leading Regional Provider of Vocational Education and Training in Western Australia

MISSION
Leading the Wheatbelt Region into a sustainable future by:

Providing excellence in
Vocational Education
and Training through

planned delivery
options and

partnerships.

Providing life long and
life wide learning

opportunities to improve
the quality of life for the

people of the region.

Expanding the region’s
skills base and

employment
opportunities.

Promoting an integration
of environmental
protection, social
advancement and

economic prosperity.

VALUES
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is committed to providing:

Customer Service
Providing customers with a
quality service which they

value as being responsive to
their needs and expectations.

Learning and Development
Providing a learning and

working environment that is
open, friendly, conducive to
teamwork and personal and
professional development.

Continuous Improvement and
Innovation

Encouraging initiative, innovation
and active participation in the

development and implementation
of new processes and training

services.

Access and Equity
Endeavouring at all times to
ensure equitable access to

services and facilities
regardless of age, gender,

ethnicity, disability or distance
from learning centre.

Organisational and Personal
Integrity

Decisions and behaviour are
guided by the principles of

openness, honesty, fairness
and respect.

Strategic Directions
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Key Result Areas 2004

1. Economic Outcomes
The provision of vocational education and training to support the growth

of a diversified regional economy.

2. Social Outcomes
The provision of vocational education and training to ensure an educated,

healthy, safe and supportive regional community.

KRA SOC-01
Community Relations

Strategic Objective
To proactively develop new and

enhance existing College
relationships with Industry and

the Community.

KRA SOC-02
Valuing People

Strategic Objective
To empower, encourage and
support College students and
staff to reach their potential.

3. Environmental Outcomes
The provision of vocational education and training which promotes valuing

and protecting the environment.

KRA ENV-01
Teaching and Learning

programs
Strategic Objective

To develop and implement
training programs and

courses which promote
environmental sustainability.

KRA ENV-02
College Operations

Strategic Objective
To foster environmentally

appropriate management of
College operations.

KRA ENV-03
Community Leadership

Strategic Objective
To provide leadership for the

Wheatbelt Community by
demonstrating environmentally

sustainable good practice.

KRS ECO-01
Training Delivery

Strategic Objective
To promote excellence in

training.

KRA ECO-02
Innovation, Quality and

Continuous Improvement
Strategic Objective

To continually improve the
College’s products and

services.

KRA ECO-03
Financial Sustainability

Strategic Objective
To strategically manage College
finances to ensure responsive

growth.

Key Result Areas 2004
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Services and facilities

Services and facilities

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is committed to
providing a very high quality of training and
associated services for our students.

Services based at the Northam campus include:

• a Bookshop which carries a range of materials
and books relevant to TAFE training. Mail orders
are accepted to ensure all students have access;

• a Canteen that provides refreshments and
nutritious food in an air-conditioned facility, where
students and staff are welcome to gather;

• a Library which provides a variety of materials
including books, video recordings,
audiocassettes, pamphlets, microfiche and
journals. The library provides CD-Roms and
overnight loan. Students are invited to borrow
books by mail;

•  an Equity Officer who provides assistance to
students who are experiencing barriers to
learning.

Each campus has computers available for student
use.

We provide Aboriginal Program Assistants and
an Aboriginal Development Officer to assist
community groups and individuals, encouraging
participation and completion of training by
Indigenous members of the community.

The College Grievance Officers are available to
students and staff throughout the college to address
any issues or concerns.

The CY Career Focus program provides opportunity
for employers to register their job vacancies with
the college. Suitable, job-ready graduates and
students who have registered with the program can
then be referred to these positions.

Skills Recognition is offered to those with
experience in the field of their chosen qualification.
This is the formal acknowledgement of skills,
knowledge and competencies that individuals have
gained through work, informal training and life
experience.

Library, Northam Campus Canteen, Northam Campus

Computer Lab
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Organisational structure

Organisational structure

Managing Director
Peter Mahler

Director Research
& Planning

David Bowman

A/Director
Academic Services

Doug Monk

Director Corporate
Services

David Rampono

Regional Manager
Northern Region

Dean O’Callaghan

Portfolio Director
Primary Industries &
Learning Enterprises

Prue Jenkins

Manager, Scope &
Compliance

Kathy Pollard

Manager Finance
Lynley Cannon

Regional Manager
Eastern Region

Ric Newman

Regional Manager
Southern Region
Sandra English

A/Manager
Community Relations

Russell Farr

Manager Quality
and Planning

Darryl Forward

Aboriginal
Development Officer-

Northern
Les Martin

Portfolio Director
Business & Social

Sciences

John Smoker

Manager Systems
Development

Peter McFarlane

Portfolio Director
Trades & Industry

Peter Harding

Data Administrator
Tiffany Maddox

Principal Lecturer
Peter Forbes

Principal Lecturer
Heidi Astbury

Manager Human
Resources

Michael Bowman

Manager
Information
Technology

Brenden O’Driscoll

A/Manager Learning
Resources

Charlene Plunkett

Disability Services
Coordinator

James Dawson

Aboriginal
Development Officer-

Southern
Vacant
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Desired outcomes for

Public Training Providers

Provide Vocational Education and Training
consistent with a College Training Profile;

Provide to an employer, a group of
employers or any other persons or
authorities such Fee-for-Service training
programs as are authorised by the
Minister for Training;

Undertake research and development
related to Vocational Education and
Training which has a direct practical
application to industry, commerce and the
community;

Promote equality of opportunity in the
undertaking of Vocational Education and
Training;

Provide or arrange for the delivery of
services to students;

Display at Dowerin Field Days

Participate in initiatives involving the whole
of the State training system and collaborate
with other Colleges and educational
institutions to ensure the greatest
effectiveness and economy in expenditure
and the most beneficial relationship with
other Colleges and educational institutions
throughout the State;

Contribute to the general development of the
community in the region of the College
through activities such as the provision of
adult and community education, as may be
authorised by the Minister;

Provide, on behalf of another education
authority, post-secondary education as is
approved by the Minister.

The College performs functions as conferred on it by the
Vocational Education and Training (VET) Act 1996 or by the

Minister by order published in the Government Gazette
as detailed below:
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College environment

College environment

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is an award winning,
quality endorsed, regional-based organisation,
committed to meeting the education and training
needs of Western Australia’s Wheatbelt.

The TAFE is comprised of five regional campuses,
located in Kellerberrin, Merredin, Moora, Narrogin
and Northam.  Additional TAFE centres operate in
Brookton, Pingelly, Kondinin, Quairading, Jurien and
Bindoon.  We also deliver training through forty-three
telecentres throughout our region.

The Wheatbelt continues to make an important
economic contribution to the State’s economy.  It is
the State’s largest contributor of agricultural
products, with grains being a dominant and
prosperous yield.

A sound fishing industry thrives along the western
coast of the region and mining includes mineral
sands, gold and nickel.

Tourism, horticulture and aquaculture are emerging
industries, to which C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
has responded, establishing further infrastructure,
expansion of related courses, and opening a
revolutionary Inland Saline Aquaculture
Demonstration Facility in 2004.

Rural decline throughout regional and remote
Western Australia highlights the need for the region
to be innovative and continuously expand its
economic base, producing high quality, value-added
products. C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE remains
responsive to the skills requirements and training
needs of the region, as it continues to adapt and
progress.

In the early 1990’s, nationwide surveys identified
Western Australia’s Wheatbelt as having one of
Australia’s lowest participation rates in vocational
training. This was attributed greatly to the difficulties
of providing training to such a dispersed population,
from a metropolitan based training organisation.

Launched in 1995, C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
is the Wheatbelt community’s own TAFE which has
implemented innovative and adaptable learning
strategies, to enable students to study flexibly: at
their own home, workplace or local telecentre.
Cumulative with other dedicated efforts, such as
conducting Community Training Needs Forums,
results include consistent growth in local training for
local jobs and retention of expertise continues to
improve.

As part of the West Australian Government network
of TAFEWA, our highly qualified and experienced
staff work in consultation with business and industry
to develop C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s
vocational programs, para-professional courses and
workplace training solutions.

Regional Western Australia has a significant
Indigenous population and C.Y. O’Connor College
of TAFE is committed to providing quality education
and training to this group, encouraging and
facilitating viable employment outcomes.

Customer Focus is regarded very highly within
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE. Graduate
Satisfaction and Destination Annual Surveys, carried
out independently by WA Department of Education
and Training, have indicated outstanding results in
this area.  C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has
consistently exceeded or matched the state average
in the majority of parameters in these surveys, with
2004 overall satisfaction reaching 83%.  Significantly,
the College achieved 42% Very Satisfied, exceeding
the State average of 36% for student satisfaction.
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Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Business and Social Sciences

SIFTS - Semi Intensive Tank Floating System

2004 saw the amalgamation of the Business and
Information Technology and Community Services
Portfolios.

This resulted in an allocation of 207,000 SCH or
35% of the total college profile.  Due to strong
enrolments and dedication from the lecturing staff it
was possible to achieve our target without the
traditional rush of enrolments late in the year.

The mix of courses offered in 2004 included the
Aboriginal School based traineeships, Financial
Services, Multimedia, Information Technology and
Community Services.  As in 2003, demand for
Community Services courses outstripped available
Profile.  Many outstanding learning opportunities
were provided  across the whole of our catchment
area.

Achievements
Increased traineeships across all areas.

Student graduation ceremonies held in all regions.

Graduation of 8 Certificate IV Youth Work Students
through the Fogarty Foundation Scholarship.

Completion of Industry Training needs analysis in
Aged Care.

Increased industry involvement and consultation.

Successful VET for  schools projects in Business,
IT  and Community Services.

Student trainee at Pingelly Health service won
National traineeship award.

Completion of WEBCT training for 40 staff.

Lecturer of the year, ASL Lecturer, Business
Management.

Action learning projects.

Improved on line enrolment processes.

Increase in variety of Commercial Services course
delivered.

2005 will see the delivery of our first Workplace
English, Language and Literacy (WELL) program in
collaboration with the Toodyay shire.

BSS also has numerous Youth Advantage programs
commencing February. These include: Gaining
Access to Employment (GATE) to various client
groups; and Certificate in Work Readiness (Youth).
It is anticipated that these courses will offer increased
flexibility to this student group.

Priorities for the BSS area for 2005 include:

Improving the quality, value and consistency of VET.

Responding to existing and evolving Industry and
Community needs.

Improving pathways and linkages between training
and employment for Indigenous students as well as
other identified target groups.

Improved and simplified academic and
administrative processes with a direct correlation to
increased client focus.

Student and Lecturer, Moora
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Report on Operations

Report on Operations

In 2004, Primary Industries and Learning Enterprises continued to provide quality programs, services and
products to  meet the needs of Primary Industry customers (students/trainees, industry groups and employers)
in the following program areas: Agriculture, Rural Business Management, Horticulture, Land Management,
Grain Handling, Wool Classing, Fishing and Aquaculture, as well as General Education for Adults and
Women’s programs.

Primary Industries and Learning Enterprises

Achievements
CSSN funding for Research of Existing Resources
for Rural Production Training Package. This project
examined the extent to which the existing resources
for agriculture could be mapped to the new Rural
Production Training Package. Created a database
of books, literature and current literature which
addresses the new requirements.

Staff completing online training through Learnscope
through a collaborative project with Great Southern
TAFE.

 Australian Grains Institute Scholarships coordinated
by College on behalf of Inghams, Grain Pool, CBH,
Rabobank, Western Railroads and AWB.

Partnership with Challenger TAFE for delivery of
Inland Aquaculture (profile and FFS) FarmBis
funded.

Research partnership established with Challenger
TAFE and Springfield Waters Aquaculture to conduct
research on developing a viable marine finfish
industry for the Wheatbelt under Science and
Technology funding. Construction and trialling of the
Semi Intensive Floating Tank System. Launch of the
R&D inland aquaculture facility by Minister for
Agriculture, Kim Chance.

$65,000 won under Training Technology and
Equipment submission for purchase of new tractor
and implements which will allow delivery of a new
suite of courses for agriculture and horticulture.

Partnership with Pork Industry Training to deliver
training collaboratively to their trainees at AQF level
3 is ongoing with extension to Certificate IV in 2005.

Commercial training to CBH in Certificate III Grains
Handling online and Ausbulk in South Australia.   A
Community College in Iowa is currently sampling 2
units.

Commercial training for the Department of
Agriculture in header operations at Mingenew and
Newdegate.

Training in Certificate III Clip Preparation to WA
Colleges of Agriculture at Narrogin and Cunderdin–
continuation and extension of program.

Just In Time training for West Australian Farmers
Federation for seeding (tractor operations)
conducted in conjunction with WA Colleges of
Agriculture.

Horticulture Students
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Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Springfield Waters Aquaculture Facility, Northam

Pave the Way program under Australians Working
Together funding—the BYO program (Bring your
own Culture, skills, talents and experience).
Multicultural learning program providing preparation
and access for further education and training. This
project was designed to bring many different cultures
together to share their culture, talents and skills.
(Phillipino, Chinese, Japanese, Polish, Russian,
West Timorese, Indigenous) Graduation held in
November and a presentation at the Best Practice
forum in December.  The Program was also a finalist
in the Best Regional Program Award for Adult
Learners Week.

Australian Wool Innovations tender funding won for
shearer/shedhand training in Northam, Merredin and
Moora under Regional Training Alliance.

Action Based Learning project funded under TLASG
funds to develop a promotional PowerPoint CD-
ROM for PILE for Field Days and enhance the
website, whilst concurrently upgrading lecturers ICT
skills. Very positive feedback from the Department
who felt the project outcomes were “outstanding”
and an “example of good practice” in use of TLASG
funds.

The College’s Return to Learn strategy was
presented at the WA Adult Literacy Conference by
a student who was previously the recipient of the
Adult Learner of the Year Award.

Agriculture Pre-employment courses delivered
under Rural Operations in partnership with WA
Farmers, Pastoralists and Graziers, Kondinin Group,
Rural Enterprises Employment Agency, PGA
Personnel, Rural Skills Australia and the WA Primary
Industries Training Council.
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Trades and Industry

The Trades Portfolio Area provides training to students, apprentices and trainees in the areas of Automotive,
Plant Mechanics, Engineering, Metal Fabrication, Building, Furniture Manufacture, General Construction,
Art, Hospitality and Tourism, Retail, Sport and Recreation, Transport, Ranger Studies and Local Government.

Achievements

Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Lecturers  have established strong relationships with
regional employers which has led to the number of
Metals apprentices and trainees serviced by the
College doubling to a total of 70 students.

The number of Plant Mechanic apprentices serviced
has also doubled to a total of 17 students, again
due to commendable lecturer/employer
relationships that have been established.

Successfully secured a grant for $215,000 for Plant
Mechanic equipment from the Department of
Education and Training. This is the largest grant
secured by the College to date.

Provided post-trade courses in the latest Fuel
Injection technology for the Automotive industry.

A close partnership was established with Boekeman
Machinery which has resulted in collaborative
advertising ventures.

Conducted apprentice interviews for various
industries, at the request of local businesses. This
ensured that only the best potential apprentices
were entering the industry areas.

Two successful Art exhibitions were held: one in
Moore’s Gallery, Fremantle and the other at the local
gallery in Narrogin. Both received good local media
coverage, and resulted in the sales of numerous
art pieces produced by C.Y. O’Connor students.

The ever popular Rangers course fulfilled Profile
mid-year and has been conducted on a Fee-for-
Service basis since August.

In cooperation with Marley’s Transport
approximately 30 Certificate III Transport
traineeships were initiated, thanks to continuing high
levels of service from Trades Lecturers.

Continued delivery of Metals, Furniture Production,
Retail and First Aid training in five prisons to provide
avenues for re-education and employment for ex-
prisoners.

A facility at Pingelly was established in conjunction
with KEEDAC, to provide a venue for lecturers to
conduct  Automotive courses for the local community.

A partnership has been established with the
Wheatbelt Aboriginal Corporation, to build
environmentally friendly ablution blocks on Aboriginal
reserves in Northam and Kellerberrin.

A Memorandum of Understanding developed with
the Shire of Northam to refurbish an eco-friendly
house in Mitchell Avenue, Northam.

The first class of apprentices in Carpentry and
Joinery received Trade Certificates in 2004, as well
as a class of indigenous students in Narrogin
receiving Trade Certificates in Furniture Production.

Trades Student, Northam
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Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Northern Region

The Northern Region is centred around the town of Moora and covers
an area from the West to the coast at Jurien and east to Dalwallinu.

Achievements
A partnership arrangement was developed between
the Disabilities Services Commission and
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Moora Campus to
deliver a series of units from Certificate III in Disability
Work. This course was a success and the lecturer
received tremendous feedback from Coastal &
Wheatbelt Commonwealth Carer Respite Centre.
Through this program they have been able to access
trained staff to meet increased demand for respite
care in Moora. Out of the ten students who enrolled
in the course nine successfully completed the units.
Due to the success of this trial program the DSC
will be seeking further partnership arrangements with
the College at other regional campuses.

2004 was a significant year for the Moora
Horticulture Program. The flexible learning program
has seen student participation increase to over 30
at various times throughout the year. The
implementation of the CAVSS program into assisting
horticulture students has proven to be a tremendous
success and has given that extra support to enable
students to successfully complete their course.  The
program culminated in a graduation ceremony.

Students have participated in part time evening
classes in Certificate III in Art Foundation.

VET for Schools
• Sport and Recreation:  Eleven students received

their Certificate I in Sport and Recreation and
three students have continued on to complete
the Certificate II in Sport and Recreation.

• Information Technology:  Fifteen students have
completed the Certificate I in Information
Technology.

• Year 10 Aboriginal Trainees:  Eight students
began course, three students have completed the
course with a possible addition of three more
students.

Jurien Bay
Delivery has continued in the Jurien area with a large
proportion being in the Computing and Business
areas.

Chittering
In the Chittering Region students have participated
in full time studies in the Certificate III and IV in Youth
Work.  Part time evening classes in Information
Technology have also been conducted at Bindoon
in each term during 2004.

Telecentres
Courses have been held at Dalwallinu and Lancelin
Telecentres.

Nursery Production
The Nursery has generated revenue from the sale
of plants to amass to just  over $5,000.00.  Seedlings
have been purchased by the Moora Shire, Moora
Rotary Club, CALM, Moore Catchment Council,
Lewis Motor Company and individual members of
the farming community. An innovation proposal was
submitted and accepted by the Executive
Management Team for the development of an on-
site arboretum and seed orchard. The sale of plants
at the Moora Hospital generated funds for the Moora
Hospital Auxiliary and also helped to go towards
funding a student excursion to Carnarvon.

Classrooms, Moora Campus



C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Annual Report 2004Page 20

Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Eastern Region

Achievements
Significant expansion of the VET for Schools
program in Merredin and the continued development
of cooperative arrangements concerning resource
sharing.

Continuation of the highly successful Aboriginal
School-Based Traineeship program including the
servicing of students in remote locations.

Enhanced relationships with District High Schools
in the region, including a successful community
forum targeting school leavers and potential TAFE
students.

The Eastern Region encompasses thirteen local government areas
centred around the major regional centre of Merredin. Courses are
delivered through established centres at Merredin, Kellerberrin and
Quairading and via an extensive Telecentre network.

Collaborative arrangements with the Wheatbelt
Aboriginal Corporation for the training of Indigenous
people in the areas of trade, rural operations and
horticulture.

Upgrading of the Quairading facility to enable
delivery of horticulture and rural operations units.

Consolidation and continued development of
Aboriginal Visual Arts in Quairading culminating in
the College Indigenous Art Exhibition at the Moore’s
Gallery in Fremantle.

Continued growth in traineeships and
apprenticeships throughout the region particularly
in the areas of trades and agriculture.

The completion of highly successful programs in the
Community Services area, particularly Aged Care
and Teacher’s Assistant courses.

The continued development of strong links with
industry and community groups to align training
delivery with identified employment opportunities at
the local level and to address identified skills
shortages in the wool industry and shortage of farm
workers.

Flexible delivery strategies include work based
training and assessment, videoconferencing and the
use of computer based online technology.

WA Young Farmer of the Year  2004
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Southern Region
The Southern Region delivers to areas from Brookton, east to
Kondinin and south to Dumbleyung, with its administrative centre
in the town of Narrogin. Agricultural training forms a large part of
its delivery.

Achievements

Future Developments

Report on Operations

Report on Operations

2004 marked the 10 year partnership between C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE & Challenger TAFE
conducting Woolclassing. This year saw record
numbers of enrolments.

The VET for schools program was successfully
expanded to include Multimedia and Business.

Student graduations in Aged Care for both Brookton
and Narrogin, recognising the addition of trained
local staff in the industry.

An exhibition of work from Narrogin and Brookton
Art students was held in Narrogin in November.

The Southern Region Art Co-ordinator organized a
whole of college art exhibition at the Moore’s Gallery,
Fremantle.  The exhibition was opened by the
Curator of the Berndt Museum of Anthropology, Dr
John Stanton, and was very successful with a large
number of exhibits being sold.

The Narrogin Campus was successful in an
application for CSSN funding to develop assessment
tools and plans for Certificate II in Clothing
Production (Special Needs).

Primary Industry lecturers ran very successful
Harvest courses during the year at the Cunderdin
Agricultural College.

A new Certificate I Pre-Apprenticeship engineering
course commenced in Pingelly involving light
fabrication, in conjunction with KEEDAC.

A Local Government forum was held in Narrogin to
investigate and assess the training needs of local
governments throughout the Southern Region.

The Chair of the C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
Student Council, Narrogin Student Krystal Abernethy,
was announced as the winner of the Inaugural
Citizenship Award at the Annual Graduation
Ceremony.

To liaise closely with the Wagin Woolorama
Committee, Primary Industries Portfolio Director and
Department of Education and Training in the
planning of the new Wool Centre in Wagin.

To focus on increased delivery of VET courses in
Schools, expanding on the courses already being
offered.

Support the “One Stop Shop” concept by conducting
information sessions and assisting in increasing the
number of disadvantages youth into training.

Increase the number of fee-for-service courses being
conducted through the Telecentre Network.

Primary Industries Lecturer,
Narrogin

The College was involved in co-ordinating two public
forums held by The Minister for Education and
Training, Alan Carpenter MLA in May and June.
These forums were held in Narrogin and Northam
and were to gain community input into the process
for raising the school leaving age. At these forums
the College was able to highlight its initiatives in
assisting the retention of 15–19 year olds in training.
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Report on Operations

Report on Operations

The function of the Indigenous Services Unit is to
consult with indigenous communities, organisations
and individuals to identify education and training
needs and to develop appropriate strategies to
address the education and training needs as
identified by indigenous communities, organisations
and individuals.

The Aboriginal Development Officer based in
Northam, line manages indigenous staff in their
respective regions.

Objectives of the Aboriginal Services Unit: the
operational plan forms part of the College’s overall
operational and strategic plan.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has two active
Aboriginal Education Employment & Training
Committees (AEETC) operating within its Region.

The chairpersons of the AEETC are;
Northern Region – Les Martin
Southern Region – Olive Bennell

• 2004 IESIP Acquittal.

• Ongoing negotiations for Indigenous Specific
Location.

• Cross Cultural Awareness Training (for 20% of
staff annually).

• Completed various surveys and dissemination of
information.

• Regular contact with indigenous communities and
organisations re: education and training.

• Assisted staff when and wherever possible.

• Chaired AEETC Meetings including joint meeting
of Northern and Southern AEETC in Kellerberrin.

  • APA advanced to lecturing duties.

• Ongoing Community Consulting re: education
and training.

• Indigenous staff training.

• Governance Training for indigenous communities
and organisations.

• Negotiate with college staff on indigenous
education and training.

• Enhanced role of APAs in classroom delivery and
working with lecturers and students.

Achievements

Future Developments

Indigenous Services Unit

Indigenous  Artwork
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Report on Operations

Report on Operations

The Quality and Planning section is responsible for
coordinating Quality Management in the College
through the implementation and maintenance of the
Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF), ISO
9001:2000 and the Investor in People Standard (IiP).
The Section is also responsible for encouraging and
supporting continuous improvement activities
throughout the College and assisting the Director of
Research and Planning in College planning and
research processes. The Section also coordinates
the implementation and management of the Records
Management function in the College.

Throughout 2004 the Section has contributed to the
continuous improvement of business activities by
way of the following initiatives:

Completion of the Australian Quality Training
Framework (AQTF) Monitoring Audit of the College’s
VET in Schools activities in November 2004. This
audit focused on reviewing the agreements and
arrangements the College has with schools for the
delivery of VET and included site visits to 3 schools
where training delivery materials were reviewed
along with facilities provided by the schools. The
non-compliances identified were addressed with the
College adopting new processes to ensure that
future activities are compliant.

Surveillance quality system audits were undertaken
by B.V.Q.I. in April and October 2004 with only minor
observations identified. The April audit reviewed
administration and training delivery activities in the
Narrogin Region and also Planning, Audit and
Business & Social Sciences training delivery in
Northam. The October surveillance audit included
a visit to Moora to review administration and training
delivery activities in the IT and Arts areas. This audit
also reviewed Management Review and Continuous
Improvement aspects of College operations in
Northam along with the training delivery activities in
the Primary Industry and Learning Enterprise
Portfolio.

The 2004 internal audit schedule was completed in
November with all training delivery portfolio areas
included in the audit sampling process. All
administration areas were reviewed at the Northam
Campus and also at each of the Regions. Most
issues identified through this process have been
addressed with outstanding issues being monitored
for completion.

During 2004 the College has initiated a project
identified, through the College Innovation Process,
to plant endangered and financially valuable species
of Australian native trees and shrubs to a specifically
designed plan, utilising the vacant portion of land at
the Moora Campus.  This project will see benefits
including better use of College lands and improved
aesthetics while providing the opportunity to supply
seed and plant material for further propagation or
sale of endangered species. It will provide native
animal habitats, particularly for birds, while also
assisting in weed reduction and have positive impact
on the areas rising water table.  It will also provide
an opportunity to continue with the implementation
of current Training Packages in a working
environment, covering competencies from
Certificates II to IV in Horticulture, Landcare and
Agriculture. It is envisaged that this project will
progress over a period of three years.

Graduation Ceremony, Northam Town Hall

Quality, Policy and Planning Services
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Section Two

Section Two

Strategic Planning and

Reporting Framework

Art Exhibition, Foyer, Northam Campus

Social Outcomes—People and Communities
Economic Outcomes—The Economy
Environmental Outcomes—The Environment
Regional Outcomes—The Wheatbelt Region
Governance Outcomes—Good Governance



C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Annual Report 2004 Page 25

Social Outcomes

People and Communities

Moora Nursery

This strategic objective ensures that that the College
community develops new and enhances existing
College relationships with Industry and Community
groups. College wide strategies include the College
being governed by a Council of local community and
business members who advocate throughout the
region on behalf of the College. In addition,
community consultative forums are conducted
regularly throughout the region to ensure that the
College remains responsive to local industry and
community training needs and contribute to and
support local employment growth.

The College works collaboratively with groups such
as Telecentres, Local Government Agencies, the
Employment Directions Network, Youth Advisory
Councils, Indigenous groups, the Department of
Justice, Essential Personnel, Hotham Personnel,
Industry Training Councils and a growing range of
industry entities. C.Y. O’Connor College regularly
collaborates with other TAFEWA Colleges to
strengthen the TAFEWA Network as per the
Minister’s priorities and we have partnerships in
place to deliver primary industries and trades
training. Staff from across the College are members
of the various Curriculum Services Support
Networks which provide opportunity for collaboration
in delivery and resource development and ensures
currency with industry training trends.

C.Y.  O’Connor College has established partnerships
with many regional Schools, the WA Colleges of
Agriculture and the tertiary sector to develop and
support articulation pathways and ensure that
Lifelong Learning opportunities are available to all.

C.Y. O‘Connor College empowers, encourages and
supports College students and staff to reach their
potential.  One strategy designed to achieve this aim
is the offering of career  counselling and employment
preparation for students. A strengthened Student
Council structure provides meaningful input into the
College’s governance. The College has significantly
increased its ICT capacity for both staff and students
and increased online delivery through WebCT. Staff
benefit from a holistically planned and focused
Professional and Career Development strategy as
well as more formalised career advancement and
succession planning.

“To enhance the
quality of life and
well being of all
people throughout
Western Australia.”

The College was involved in co-ordinating two public
forums held by The Minister for Education and
Training, Alan Carpenter MLA in May and June.
These forums were held in Narrogin and Northam
and were held to gain community input into the
process for raising the school leaving age.   At these
forums the College was able to showcase its
initiatives in assisting the retention of 15–19 year
olds in training.
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Social Outcomes

People and Communities

Disability

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is funded for
Disability Services by the Department of Education
and Training through the Delivery and Performance
Agreement, and this includes the salary for a
Disability Services Officer.

This funding is spent either on tutoring support for
students or for the purchase of essential equipment
to enable students with a disability to participate in
the learning process.

In 2004 C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE undertook
auspicing arrangements with five Senior and five
District High Schools together with two Agricultural
Colleges.

A total of 48,438 SCH was auspiced in 2004 as well
as 27,843 SCH being delivered through Profile.

Since the introduction of Profile delivery in 2003 the
demand for VET in schools delivery has increased
markedly, resulting in a greater demand being placed
on this allocation (26,914 SCH hard ceiling).

During December 2004 VET in Schools delivery
underwent a Training Accreditation Council Audit
which resulted in three site visits and  a best practice
commendation being made for the partnership with
Northam Senior High School.

VET in schools

Access and Equity Officer, Northam Campus

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE and EDGE
Employment Solutions have embarked on an
innovative project that links students with a disability
to industry specific mentors, to assist in the transition
from studies to employment. This initiative has been
funded under “Australians Working Together”.  Five
students are currently participating in the program
which provides an opportunity for mutual learning
and understanding and the development of a more
innovative and flexible culture in their workplace.

In 2004 the College has assisted 17 students over
four campuses with tutorial support.  The future
requirements for support for students with a disability
is likely to increase markedly.

These students require ‘one on one’ supervision and
support. Many of them, especially in the CGEA
courses, have an intellectual disability and require
many hours per week of support for both social
interaction as well as literacy and numeracy tutoring.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has provided support
to an increasing number of students over the past
year, with numbers assisted rising from 48 in 1999
to 91 in 2004, an increase of 89% over this period.

During 2004 four CGEA students were recognised
for their “Outstanding Commitment to Education and
Training and Achievement in General Education.”
These students were presented with a Certificate of
Merit in a ceremony at the Northam campus in
November.

Access and Equity Officer, Northam Campus
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Cultural Diversity
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s BYO (Bring Your
Own Culture, Experience, Skills and Talents)
program was a finalist in the “Outstanding Regional
Program” catergory at the Western Australia 2004
Adult Learners Week Awards.

The BYO program was funded under the Department
of Education & Training’s “Austalian Working
Together” strategy—Pave the Way 2004.

This multicultural learning program provided
preparation and access for further education and
training.  The project was designed to bring many
different cultures together to share their culture,
talents and skills.  (Filipino, Chinese, Japanese,
Polish, Russian, West Timorese and Indigenous).
A Graduation was held in November and the course
culminated in an invitation to present at the Best
Practice Forum in December.

Throughout 2004 there were 524 indigenous
students enrolled across all campuses and learning
areas.  There were 51 students enrolled in CGEA
(Certificate of General Education for Adults), 238 in
Humanities, 47 in Primary Industries and Trades,
101 in Business and Information Technology and
87 in Indigenous specific courses.

In 2004 the College conducted a successful program
for Indigenous School Based Trainees.  Eighty
seven Year 10 Indigenous high school students
enrolled in the program and graduates were
awarded Certificate I in Work Readiness.  The
Trainees combined their TAFE studies with school
attendance and work experience placements.

2004 is the second year of the program which
teaches  students valuable employability skills and
enables them to be work ready—easing their
transition to Year 11 and 12 VET courses. 0
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Social Outcomes

People and Communities

BYO Graduation Lesser Hall, Northam
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Customer Focus

Social Outcomes

People and Communities

Through the provision of the Client Service function
the College has enhanced Customer Service and
Student Support throughout the region. The College
is committed to providing customers with a quality
service which they value as being responsive to their
needs and expectations.

This commitment to customer focus has resulted
in:

• Continuous improvement of AQTF processes.

• Industry Advisory Boards maintained across the
region.

• Continued partnering arrangements with the
Department of Justice. This has included delivery
of Vocational Training within the Justice System.

• Continued partnerships with individual High
Schools within the College region that deliver
Vocational Education & Training (VET).

• Increased delivery in School Based Traineeships.
This has strengthened articulation pathways for
further education, which demonstrates the
College’s commitment to meeting training needs
through planned delivery options and
partnerships within the Wheatbelt region.

• Continued relationship with CCI Employfast which
has enabled the College to successfully tender
for the continuation of the New Apprenticeship
Centre (NAC) at the College’s Northam Campus.

• A working relationship with key stakeholders
within the community and industry. Continued
College representation on the Apprenticeship and
Traineeship Working Group, which ensures a
regional perspective.

• Strengthened relationships with the Telecentres
that are situated within the College region which
demonstrates the College’s commitment to
meeting training needs through planned delivery
options and partnerships within the Wheatbelt
region.

• The College partially implementing the Job
Search service to current students and graduates,
which incorporates Job Search assistance and
Job Search workshops.  Staff have been identified
and are undertaking training within each of the
four main campuses to deliver this service.
Areas have been designated at each of the four
main campuses for students or graduates to be
able to access self help resources, assisting them
in the job search process.  The College aims to
have the Job Net database implemented in 2005.
The service is being delivered to our VET in
schools students and graduates.  Northam Senior
High School is being used as a pilot in 2005 in
order to develop a best practice model.

• The implementation of Customer Service
meetings which include front line staff, Customer
Service Officers and other key personnel within
the College to ensure information is disseminated
to all staff who provide customer service and
enhance the qualiy of service delivered through
the College.

One on One Job Search assistance



C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Annual Report 2004 Page 29

Social Outcomes

People and Communities

The Youth Advantage Strategy is a key initiative by
the Western Australian Department of Education and
Training to complement the Western Australian
Government’s priority to maximise the effective
participation of 15 to 19 year olds in education and
training. Through the Youth Advantage Strategy it is
envisaged that this cohort will attain the Western
Australian Certificate of Education or achieve the
AQF Certificate Level III through training, thereby
enhancing their prospects for entry into the labour
force.

The Youth Advantage Strategy is built on the three
fundamental commitments established by the WA
Department of Education and Training:

1. All 15 to 19 year olds will have access to a
suitable learning program—including literacy,
numeracy and social skills.

2. All 15 to 19 year olds will have access to an
appropriate learning environment—including “off
site” learning.

3. All 15 to 19 year olds will have access to
appropriate career development and support
services—including monitoring and tracking and
using all services available.

Responding to the individual needs of all students
cannot be achieved in isolation from the rest of the
local community.  Cross sectoral networks and
collaborative planning for the delivery of programs,
environments and services is essential for young
people to benefit from the strengths of community
relationships.  The socio-economic consequences
of early school leaving are not to be under estimated.

For the first time a joint, district-based education and
training venture was undertaken and the District
Education and Training Plan is the seminal
document that bears testimony to the success of
the initiative. To these ends the Midlands District
Education and Training Plan (DETP) was developed
to manage the provision of education and training
programs for young people.

The purpose of the Midlands DETP was:

• To maximise the effective participation of the 15
to 19 year olds in the district.

• To be the key instrument for planning, monitoring
and evaluating the effectiveness of the Youth
Advantage Strategy at the local level.

• To incorporate and build on programs that were
known to be effective and add new programs to
meet the needs of those 15 to 19 year olds who
have not been effectively catered for in the past.

Salient programs in the plan that were highlighted
include the Work Readiness programs for Year 10
Aboriginal students, a coordinated approach to
career development provision for 15 year olds, the
Second Chance program at TAFE and the Youth
Alive community partnership initiative. The
implementation and monitoring process of the
Midlands District Education and Training Plan will
be carried out during 2005.

Youth Advantage Strategy
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Economic Outcomes

The Economy

Official Opening of Springfield Waters Aquaculture Facility

C.Y. O’Connor College provides vocational
education and training to support the growth of a
diversified regional economy. Its strategic objectives
include the promotion of excellence in training by
conducting regular Training Needs Analysis forums
in regional centres to identify industry and community
skill deficits and effectively align training delivery to
support emerging industries and deploy resources
appropriately throughout the regions. The College
promotes and encourages a variety of training
delivery partnerships to facilitate articulation
arrangements and increase retention rates. We have
worked effectively with industry throughout the year
to significantly increase workplace delivery and
subsequently the number of apprenticeships and
traineeships.

VET in Schools delivery has also increased markedly
with numerous partnerships being formalised with
Wheatbelt schools as well as the WA Colleges of
Agriculture. Delivery has occurred across all portfolio
areas: Primary Industries and Learning Enterprises;
Business and Social Sciences; and Trades and
Enterprise. There has been a focus on the 15 to 19
year old cohort through the planning for the Youth
Advantage Strategy and the Youth Forums
conducted in Moora, Merredin, Narrogin and
Northam. The College will be focusing on the
retention of this cohort in education, training or
employment.

Commercial delivery has increased with the
provision of customized and highly specialised
training to meet industry needs.

A culture of holistic financial responsibility has
developed throughout the College with the aim of
strategically managing College finances to ensure
responsive growth and sustainable financial
outcomes.

The College has also made significant progress in
streamlining and implementing more effective
business practices and protocols to ensure
compliance with Government Regulations and
Legislation.

The College strives to improve its products and
services through innovation and continuous
improvement. Also, to ensure that courses and
delivery resources retain industry relevance through
industry consultation and involvement.

Regular meetings with the sector specific Industry
Advisory Groups ensure that the College’s offerings
maintain currency with industry expectations and
that our graduates meet their employment and
career objectives.

To develop a strong economy that
delivers more jobs, more opportunities
and greater wealth to Western
Australians by creating the conditions
required for investment and growth.



C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Annual Report 2004 Page 31

Environmental Outcomes

The Environment

Energy Smart Government
Policy

Throughout the year the College continued to
implement and foster a culture of energy thriftiness.
Specifically targeted was the use of lighting, heating
and air conditioning, which accounts for a substantial
component of the College’s energy consumption.  It
is important to note that the College does not have
any climate controlled buildings.  As such, variations
in climatic temperature conditions can result in
subsequent swings in energy consumption.

C.Y. O’Connor College is committed to achieving
the Government’s reduction in energy consumption
targets and to this end achieved a 2% saving for the
year.

The College is in a unique position to play a leadership role in the Wheatbelt in supporting the
goal of sustainability and in adopting sustainable practices. C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
ensures that all staff are appropriately informed, encouraged and empowered to embrace
sustainability.  Staff have already been actively engaged in recycling, waste management and
energy conservation. There has also been a comprehensive review of the motor vehicle fleet
policy with resultant purchases of four cylinder gas fuelled cars.

Individuals, businesses and governments everywhere are searching for new approaches to
economic development that contribute to the environment and society, without degrading them
over the longer term. These initiatives provide us with the basis of hope for the future and a
vision for a better quality of life in the Wheatbelt region as well as the broader community.
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE shares this goal and is confident that we can assist in achieving
it, and benefit from the opportunities that sustainability brings.  It is crucial that we lead by
example in the adoption of practices and behaviour that are consistent with sustainability.

Baseline 2002/03 2003/04 Saving Saving
2002/03 2003/04

Stationary Energy
Consumption (GJ) 1835 1657 1798 9.67% 2%

Stationary Energy Costs ($) 75,333 67,659 70,660 10.19% 6.21%

Greenhouse Gas Emissions
(tonnes of CO2) 416 409 402 1.69% 3.37%

Directorate, Northam Campus
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Regional Outcomes

The Wheatbelt Region

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is an innovative and
progressive organisation, committed to meeting the
education and training needs of Western Australia’s
rural and remote regions. In 2001 C.Y. O’Connor
College won the Premier’s Award for providing
training “Services to Rural and Remote Areas”. The
College is comprised of five regional campuses,
located in Northam, Kellerberrin, Merredin, Moora
and Narrogin. Additional TAFE centres operate in
Brookton, Pingelly, Kondinin, Quairading and Jurien
Bay. With an area of 154,000 square kilometres

encompassing 44 different shires, and a population
of 72,000, the Wheatbelt Region is one of Western
Australia’s most sparsely distributed regions.

Our determination to take a leadership role in the
economic, social and sustainable environmental
development of the Wheatbelt is reflected in the
College Mission, which is to promote a stronger
regional economy by developing partnerships with
local business and community groups to identify
training needs and enhance the Region’s skills base.

Underpinning this achievement is
a set of core values, which reflect
the College’s commitment to
consistently high standards of
customer service.  To ensure
excellence in education and
training delivery, C.Y. O’Connor
College engages in regular review
of performance and strives for
continuous improvement through
innovative solutions.

The result is a College responsive
to its rural and remote
communities, conscious of the
responsibility it has in being the
only provider servicing the entire
Region, respected for its local
knowledge and expertise and
recognised for its wide
accessibility through flexible
delivery.
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Report on Governing Council

The College is a statutory authority which is largely
financed from public funds and is accountable to
the State Parliament through the Minister for
Education and Training.

The College is a public sector agency  in its own
right, which means it must comply with legislation
covering a range of matters including financial
administration, staffing, occupational health, safety
and welfare, equal opportunity, freedom of
information and codes of conduct.

The Council, as the Governing body of the College, acts on behalf of the community in organising and
managing the resources allocated to the College for the provision of vocational and further education. The
Council is a ‘body corporate’ with the power to do all that is necessary to fulfil its functions under the
Vocational Education and Training Act 1996. It is a self-governing statutory authority.

The functions of the council include the following:

1. To prepare a College Training Profile for the approval of the Minister, as and when required by the
Minister.

2. To approve the Strategic and Operational management plans for the College.

3. To oversee the implementation of the College Strategic and Operational management plans.

4. To monitor the College’s performance and initiate improvements where necessary.

5. To ensure the College’s programs and services are responsive to and meet the needs of industry,
students and the community.

6. To ensure that conditions of contracts and agreements entered into on behalf of the College are met.
Including the Delivery and Performance Agreement, contracts of employment, audited statements of
accounts and commercial contracts and arrangements.

Accountable Officer’s Report

The Accountable Officer for C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE is Mr Peter Mahler, the Managing Director of
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE.

Exhibition of Student Art at Moore’s Gallery
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• Public Sector Management Act (1994)
• Salaries and Allowances Act (1975)
• Sales Tax (Exemptions and Classifications) Act

(1992)
• School Education Act (1999)
• Secondary Education Authority Act (1984)

• Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission
Act (1989)

• A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax Act)
(1999)

• Archives Act 1983 (Commonwealth)
• Australian National Training Authority Act (1992)
• Copyright Act (1968)
• Disability Discrimination Act (1992)
• Employment, Education and Training Act (1988)
• Fringe Benefits Tax Act (1986)
• Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission

Act 1986
• Income Tax Assessment Act (1936)
• Indigenous Education (Targeted Assistance) Act

2000

• State Records Act (2000)
• State Superannuation Act (2000)
• State Supply Commission Act (1991)
• Workers Compensation and Assistance Act (1981)
• Workplace Agreements Act (1993)
• Vocational Education and Training Act (1996)

• Industrial Relations Act (1990) (Commonwealth)
• Industrial Relations Reform Act (1993)
• Privacy Act (1988) (with amendments to Act no 159,

2001)
• Racial Discrimination Act (1975)
• Sex Discrimination Act (1984)
• State Grants (Technical & Further Education

Assistance) Act (1988)
• Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act

(1992)
• Superannuation Guarantee Act (1992)
• Trade Practices Act (1974)
• Vocational Education and Training Fund Act (1992)
• Workplace Relations Act (1996)

Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Enabling Legislation

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE was established as an
autonomous institution, in accordance with section 35 of
the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996, effective
from 1 January 2001.

• Anti-Corruption Commission Act (1988)
• Censorship Act (1996)
• Corporations (WA) Act (1990)
• Criminal Code Act Compilation (1913)
• Disability Services Act (1993)
• Education Service Providers (Full fee overseas

students) Registration Act (1991)
• Electoral Act (1907)
• Electronic Transactions Act (2003)
• Equal Opportunity Act (1984)
• Evidence Act (1906)
• Fair Trading Act (1987)
• Financial Administration & Audit Act (1985) &

Treasurer’s Instructions
• Freedom of Information Act (1992)
• Government Employees Superannuation Act (1987)
• Government Financial Responsibility Act (2000)
• Industrial and Commercial Training Act (1965-1980)
• Industrial Relations Act (1979)
• Industrial Training Act (1975)
• Interpretation Act (1984)
• Labour Relations Reform Act 2002
• Library Board of WA Act (1951)
• Limitation Act (1935)
• Minimum Conditions of Employment Act (1993)
• Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act (1984)
• Occupiers Liability Act (1985)
• Parliamentary Commissioner Act (1971)
• Public and Bank Holidays Act (1972)
• Public Disclosure Act 2003

Legislation impacting on the College:
State Legislation

Federal Legislation
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Equal Opportunity Employment

The College is committed to being an equal
employment opportunity employer and has
continued to develop policies and educate staff to
reflect this.

This year the College continued to monitor the
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Equity and Diversity
Plan 2003–2005.  This demonstrates the College’s
commitment to its responsibilities under Section IX
of the Equal Opportunity Act 1984.  The plan
provides the College’s Equity and Diversity
objectives and strategies for their achievement.

Throughout the year training was undertaken for staff
on chairing and participating on selection panels,
grievance officer training and cultural awareness.

Evaluation of Programs

The Vocational Education and Training Act (1996)
requires the College to provide Vocational Education
and Training consistent with the College Training
Profile. The College is therefore required to meet
the profile and other requirements as specified in
the Delivery and Performance Agreement entered
into with the Western Australian Department of
Education and Training. The College met its
obligations under that agreement.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has continued to
survey its clients through a number of mechanisms
such as the Student Unit Evaluation Program. This
survey is aimed at obtaining direct feedback from
customers.

Freedom of Information
Members of the public seeking access to documents
under the Freedom of Information (FOI) Act (1992)
are invited to contact:

The Freedom of Information Coordinator
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE
PO Box 498 Northam WA 6401
Phone: (08) 9622 3905 Fax: (08) 9622 6763

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE received no
applications under the FOI act in 2004.

Record Keeping Plan
The Education and Training Sector agencies have
agreed in principle to have a common Record
Keeping Plan. The common Record Keeping Plan
was submitted to the State Records Office in March
2004 and included C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE.

The Education and Training Sector Record Keeping
Plan sets out the manner in which records are to be
created by the College; and how those records are
to be kept. The Record Keeping Plan also provides
an accurate reflection of the record keeping program
within the College, including record keeping systems,
disposal arrangements, policies, practices and
processes.

The Record Keeping Plan is the primary means of
providing evidence of compliance with the Act.
Implementation of the Record Keeping Plan provides
best practice in record keeping within the College
and, at the same time, assists agencies in meeting
the minimum legislative compliance in relation to
record keeping.

The common Record Keeping Plan sets out the
strategies for measuring the effectiveness and
efficiency of the Record Keeping system,
implementation and review of training programs and
induction processes. These strategies are currently
being developed across Education and Training
Sector agencies.

Trades Student
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Public Sector Standards

Report on Compliance
For the Period

1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004
As Required by Section 31(1) of the Public Sector Management Act 1994

To the best of my knowledge, C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has complied with the Public
Sector Standards in Human Resource Management for:

• Recruitment, Selection and Appointment
• Transfer
• Secondment
• Performance Management
• Redeployment
• Termination
• Discipline
• Temporary Deployment (Acting)
• Grievance Resolution

as well as with the Western Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and the College Code of
Conduct.

Procedures are in place to ensure compliance and appropriate internal assessments have been
conducted to meet legislative requirements.

For the year 2004, there were no breaches against any of the Standards.

Peter Mahler
Managing Director
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

28 February 2005
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Trade Practices Act

There were no reported breaches of the Trade
Practices Act during 2004.

Electoral Act

In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral
Act 1907, the following is a statement of all
expenditure incurred by C.Y. O’Connor College of
TAFE during 2004 in relation to advertising, market
research, polling, direct mail and media advertising
organisations:

Media Advertising Organisations
Marketforce Productions $35,281.37
Media Decisions $8,803.68
Other publications $4,170.59

Total $48,255.64
  (GST exclusive)

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE did not utilise the
services of other Media Advertising Organisations,
Market Research Organisations, Direct Mail
Organisations, Polling Organisations or Advertising
Agencies in 2004.

Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

No members of the Governing Council or Senior
Officers of the College have any interest in any
contract or proposed contract with the College.

Publications

Academic
• Fees & Charges Brochure
• Course Outlines (Online: Products & Services

Catalogue)
• Refund Policy Brochure

• 2004 Student Diary
• Website
• Four master course brochures semester one (one

per region)
• Four master course brochures semester two (one

per region)
• Student news semester one
• All Directions (student newsletter, June and

November)
• The Inside Edge (bi-monthly editions)
• Various subject brochures
• Annual report

Occupational Safety & Health

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE complies with the
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984. The
College has a comprehensive program for
monitoring, skills development, staff participation
and reporting to ensure requirements of the
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 are met.

A new Occupational Safety and Health Committee
was established and meetings are held every six
weeks throughout the year. During 2004 six new
officers were trained as safety and health
representatives for the work place and two officers
attended advanced training for OS&H
representatives.

Public Interest Disclosure
The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 came into
effect on 1 July 2003, requiring the College to:

• Facilitate the disclosure of public interest
information.

• Provide protection for those who make
disclosures.

• Provide protection for those who are the subject
of a disclosure.

In accordance with the Act, the College has duly
appointed a Public Interest Disclosure Officer and
has produced internal policies and procedures
related to its obligations. One Public Interest
Disclosure request was reported during 2004.

Interests in Contracts

Marketing & Community Relations
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Governance Outcomes

Good Governance

Risk Management

The College has successfully embedded risk
management principles into management decision
making and has established a risk management
framework to ensure compliance with Treasury
Instruction 825 and consistent with the Australian
Standard 4360:1999.

A Risk Management Planning Day is held annually
for all managers within the College.  During the year
modifications were carried out to the risk
management data base.

Staffing
The average College staffing level for the Year
2004 was 142.25 FTE.

Recruitment

The College continued to advertise as widely as
possible to attract the best candidates for all
positions.  For the year a total of 69 positions were
advertised.

Acting Opportunities

The College demonstrated an ongoing commitment
to investing in its staff by providing acting
opportunities.   For the year 2004 there were 5 acting
opportunities.

Professional & Career
Development

During 2004, the equivalent of 158 staff participated
in a total of 100 different PACD activities.  A number
of whole of College and area specific PACD activities
were held during the year.  These included:

• Whole of College Induction day
• Certificate IV in Assessment and Workplace

Training
• Cultural Awareness Training
• Staff Selection Panel Training
• Defensive Driving
• OS&H Representatives Training
• Grievance Officers Training
• Management Essentials Training

General Agreement Lecturer’s Certified
Agreement

FTE People FTE

72 64.2  64    57.93

Pricing Policy

Fees and charges levied by the College were in
accordance with the requirements of the following;

• Vocational Education and Training Act 1996

• Vocational Education and Training
Regulations 1996

• 2004 Policy Guidelines for Publicly Funded VET
Providers and Programs for Fees and Charges
issued by the Department of Education and
Training.

People

There were also lecturer specific professional and
career development sessions conducted under
Teaching, Learning and Strategy Group funding.
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Section Three

Section Three

Key Performance Indicators

and Financial Statements

Business Student Merredin

Report on Outcomes
Certification of Key Performance Indicators
Audit Report on Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicators Report
Financial Statements Declaration
Audit Report on Financial Statements
Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Outcome
The provision of vocational education and training services to meet community and industry training needs.

Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Outputs
Organisation Performance Information

Quantity (Effectiveness)

Quality (Effectiveness)

2002 2002 2003 2003 2004 2004
Measure Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual

Student Satisfaction
Percentage 85% 80% 85% 85% 85% 83%

Graduate Satisfaction
Percentage 80% 84% 80% 85% 85% 85%*

Graduate Employment
Percentage 70% 80% 78% 77% 78% 77%*

Successful Training
Completions (MLOR)
Percentage 70% 69% 70% 62% 62% 66.74%

2002 2002 2003 2003 2004 2004
Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual

Student Curriculum
Hours (SCH) 620,848 648,324 700,000 626,400 650,000 619,938

Profile (College
Resource Agreement) 570,848 570,842 570,848 568,138 570,848 571,471

Non-Profile (Commercial
Activities) 50,000 77,482 129,152 58,262 79,152 48,467

Access and Participation 110,000 98,344 100,000 86,214 90,000 71,823

Outcome, Outputs and Organisational Performance Information (Effectiveness)

*These figures reflect the 2003 Student Outcomes Survey result.  The College is unable to
provide an update to this KPI as statistically valid College level data is not available in 2004.

The National Centre for Vocational Education Research intends to conduct surveys with an
appropriate sample design to produce statistically reliable College level data in alternative years
commencing from 2005.

Measure
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Targets determined by Executive in consultation with Academic Managers.

Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Costs (Efficiency)

2002 2002 2003 2003 2004 2004
Measure Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual

Cost per SCH for
Aggregate College
Delivery $15.20 $16.53 $16.50 $18.72 $18.21 $19.10

Timeliness (Effectiveness)

2002 2002 2003 2003 2004 2004
Measure Target Actual Target Actual Target Actual

College Delivery and
Performance Agreement   December   December   December   December   December   December
Received
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Report on Operations

Report on Operations

Access and Participation SCH
Delivery Levels

Access and Participation courses provide general
education and employment preparation for special
needs groups. Courses are designed to meet the
specific needs of Indigenous people, Women,
Australians of culturally and linguistically diverse
backgrounds and other special needs groups.

Notes:
The information for Access and Equity is based on
SCH delivery and measures the extent to which the
college is meeting the skills and training
requirements of special needs groups. The measure
is calculated using profile and non-profile SCH in
stream 2000 courses, plus non-stream 2000
courses designed for targeted special needs groups
(from the College Management Information System)
and is expressed as a percentage of C.Y. O’Connor
College of TAFE’s total SCH delivery.

Explanation:
The percentage of Access and Participation SCH
achieved is below the target. C.Y. O’Connor College
of TAFE remains committed to meeting the
requirements of special needs groups in the
Wheatbelt community.

Percentage of Non-Profiled
Activity against Total College
SCH

This indicator reveals the amount of College delivery
which is undertaken to meet the training needs of
industry, community and individuals that is additional
to the College profile and conducted under
commercial arrangement.

Notes:
This Performance Indicator was based on data from
the College’s Management Information System
(CMIS). It shows the percentage of non-profile SCH
achieved compared to the Total College SCH. Non-
profile delivery is that which is funded by means other
than through the Delivery and Performance
agreement between C.Y. O’Connor College and the
WA Department of Training.

Explanation:
The percentage of non-profile activity is less than
the target set, although there has been a  continued
focus on the development of fee for service and other
commercial activity.

Percentage of Access and Participation SCH
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13.76%

15.16%
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Profile and Non Profile SCH
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Profile Non-Profile

2002 2003 2004 2004
Target

7%9.30%

90.70%

11.96%

88.04% 93%

13%

87%
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
for the year ended 31 December 2004

We hereby Certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are
relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the C.Y. O’Connor College of
TAFE’s performance and fairly represent the performance of C.Y. O’Connor College of
TAFE for the period 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004.

Peter Mahler Alison Woodman
Managing Director Chair
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Governing Council

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

28 February 2005



 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

   
 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
C Y O’CONNOR COLLEGE OF TAFE 
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 
 
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, the key effectiveness and efficiency performance indicators of the  
C Y O’Connor College of TAFE are relevant and appropriate to help users assess the College’s 
performance and fairly represent the indicated performance for the year ended  
December 31, 2004. 
 
Scope 
The Governing Council’s Role 
The Governing Council is responsible for developing and maintaining proper records and 
systems for preparing performance indicators.  
 
The performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency. 
 
Summary of my Role 
As required by the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, I have independently audited 
the performance indicators to express an opinion on them.  This was done by looking at a 
sample of the evidence. 
 
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the performance indicators is 
error free, nor does it examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit 
procedures should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the 
decisions of users of the performance indicators. 
 

 
D D R  PEARSON 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
March 31, 2005 
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Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE has developed Key Performance Indicators which enable the
College and its stakeholders to assess and monitor the achievement of its operations and to
enhance public accountability for performance.

The Indicators report on both profile and non-profile training delivery under continuous review
to improve definitions, remove ambiguity and to ensure that changing customer expectations,
technology and the quality of the provision of Vocational Education and Training are taken into
account.  They relate to the organisation’s strategic priorities and outcomes.

Desired Outcome

The provision of vocational education and training
services to meet community and industry training
needs.

Effectiveness Indicators

The Effectiveness Indicators measure:
• Graduate Satisfaction*
• Student Satisfaction
• Graduate Employment Status*
• College Training Profile

Successful Training Team, Aged Care

*These figures reflect the 2003 Student Outcomes
Survey result.  The College is unable to provide an
update to this KPI as statistically valid College level
data is not available in 2004.

The National Centre for Vocational Education
Research intends to conduct surveys with an
appropriate sample design to produce statistically
reliable College level data in alternative years
commencing from 2005.
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Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators

The 2004 Student Satisfaction Survey was
conducted by Market Equity for the Department of
Education and Training and TAFEWA Colleges. The
survey was divided into two separate survey
instruments, one focussed on the needs of
Employment Based Students (EBS) and the other
on Institution Based Students (IBS).

The survey results are used by the College to
formulate policy and enact changes aimed at
improving the quality and relevance of the courses
offered. In addition, the research is used to identify
priorities for enhancing the quality of teaching,
learning and assessment and to identify priorities
for facilities development, aimed at improving
student satisfaction with their college experience.

This enables C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE to
focus resources on a needs basis to maximise the
quality of the learning experience.

All students who had undertaken a course of study
in 2004 were eligible to take part in the survey.
Potential respondents were invited to respond to the
receipt of a mail based survey, followed by a
secondary dispatch to target groups who exhibited
lower response rates. These responses were
augmented by an on-line version and targeted
telephone based follow up. All students had the
opportunity to take part in the survey, even if they
were not sent a paper-based survey.

Response rates and sample error calculations for
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE are outlined below.

Response Rates

Institution Based Students (IBS) Employment Based Students (EBS)

Overall
Standard
Error

Population Individual Sample % of Population Individual Sample % of % + or -
(Useable Students Achieved Students (Useable Students Achieved Students
Records) Contacted Resp. Records) Contacted Resp.

  1,545 870 297 27% 209 118 35 23% 3.87%

In 2004 two major student surveys were conducted to provide information
about graduates and students in training.

The figures used in this report reflect the 2003 Student Outcomes Survey result as the College is unable to
provide an update to this KPI as statistically valid College level data is not available in 2004.  The National
Centre for Vocational Education Research intends to conduct surveys with an appropriate sample design to
produce statistically reliable College level data in alternative years commencing from 2005.

Student Outcomes Survey
The 2004 Student Outcomes Survey was conducted on behalf of the National Centre for Vocational Education
Research (NCVER) with funding from the Australian National Training Authority (ANTA).

The aim of the 2004 Student Outcome Survey was to measure Vocational Education and Training (VET)
employment outcomes, further study destinations, opinions of the participants on the courses completed
and general student characteristics.

The 2004 survey was administered to students who completed a Technical and Further Education (TAFE)
course in 2003 at C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE.

Student Satisfaction Survey
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Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators

Notes
The published percentages in this report are
calculated on the basis of the number of “valid”
responses to each question. The “valid” response
comprises the total number of survey respondents
less the number of respondents who did not answer
the particular question of reference. The method
used to calculate the percentages is the number of
graduates who achieved or partly achieved their
main reason for doing the course compared to the
number of valid responses, expressed as a
percentage.

Graduate Satisfaction

Effectiveness Indicator
Graduate Satisfaction is a Performance Indicator
that measures the extent to which C.Y. O’Connor
College of TAFE graduates believe that they had
partly or fully achieved their main reason for
undertaking the course and this is compared to the
State and National averages. The level of Graduate
Satisfaction reflects the extent to which the VET
services provided by the College are meetings
community and industry training needs.

Explanation
The College is unable to provide an update to this
KPI as statistically valid College level data is not
available in 2004.  The National Centre for
Vocational Education Research intends to conduct
surveys with an appropriate sample design to
produce statistically reliable College level data in
alternative years commencing from 2005.

 2004 2004 2003 2002
 State National

Graduate Satisfaction
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Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators

Student Satisfaction

Effectiveness Indicator
The Student Satisfaction Rating measures the
effectiveness of the College in meeting the training
needs of students of Wheatbelt community.

Notes
870 institution based students were contacted to
provide a sample of 297 students—a 27% response
rate and 118 employment based students were
contacted to provide a sample of 35 students—a
23% response rate.

This Performance Indicator was calculated using the
collective responses reflecting how satisfied
students were with their course at the College. The
level of student satisfaction reflects the extent to
which the VET services provided by the College are
meeting community and industry training needs.

2004  2004     2003        2002
 State

Graduate Employment Status

Effectiveness Indicator
The level of Graduate Employment reflects the
extent to which the VET training programs provided
by the College are meeting community and industry
training needs. A key objective of the College is to
provide graduates with the relevant skills to enter
the workforce and/or re-train for employment while
also meeting industry needs.

The College is unable to provide an update to this
KPI as statistically valid College level data is not
available in 2004.

Explanation
In 2004, C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE had a
Student Satisfaction level of 83%, which is in line
with the State Average of 84%. Inherent in this
measure is a figure of 42% of students who were
very satisfied, which is a satisfaction level 6% above
the State average.  These figures confirm that C.Y.
O’Connor College of TAFE is positioned at the upper
end of the scale of very satisfied students, and in
line with other regional colleges and private training
providers in overall satisfaction.

Graduate Employment
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State National

Not in labour force

76%

  8%

16%
6%

14%

80%
77%

14%

9%

15% 13%

Student Satisfaction
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Measure B: Percentage of achieved SCH
against profiled SCH by WADT Groups
Profile delivery is training which the WA Department
of Education and Training purchases from
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE under the terms of
the Delivery and Performance Agreement.
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE aims to provide
training that meets the needs of community and
industry. The Department of Education and Training
administers the State Training Profile under specific
industry groups which are aligned to industry and
community employment needs.

The following table represents the breadth of the
College’s delivery.

Achievement of College Profile

Effectiveness Indicator
Measure A: Percentage of achieved SCH
against profile delivery.
This information shows the percentage of SCH
achieved for profile funded activities as contracted
with the Department of Education and Training for
Vocational Education and Training through the
Delivery and Performance Agreement. The
percentage of Profile achieved reflects the measure
of the College’s ability to provide VET services to
satisfy the training needs of community and industry
groups within the context of the State Training Profile
parameters.

Notes
The 2004 Planned data was obtained from the 2004
Delivery and Performance Agreement. The Actual
2004 SCH is the total profile SCH from the College
Management Information System (CMIS). The
Achieved profile delivery is derived from actual SCH
as a percentage of the total planned delivery.
Achievement of the College profile is a measure of
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s ability to meet the
total number of planned SCH as agreed with the
WA Department of Education and Training.

Explanation
In 2004, the College delivered 100.12% of its
planned Profile delivery. The College planned to
deliver 570,848 SCH and actually delivered 571,471
Student Curriculum Hours.

Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators

2004   2004       2003          2002
 Target

Percentage of Profile Achieved
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Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators

Notes
The 2004 Planned SCH data was obtained from the
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA) with the
WA Department of Education Training. Actual SCH
are obtained from the College Management
Information System (CMIS). The profile achievement
percentage was calculated by dividing the achieved
SCH by the planned SCH and expressed as a
percentage.

Explanation
The College continues to maintain its high level of
achievement in all the major WADT groups. As per
the State Training Strategy priorities for the
Wheatbelt for 2004–2006 include: Just-In-Time short
training programs to address specific and seasonal
skill need in the agricultural sector.

WADT Group Description

Recreation Sports and Entertainment
Visual and Performing Arts
Automotive
Building and Construction
Surveying and Building
Community Service Workers
Education and Childcare
Health
Finance Insurance Property Service Workers
Food Trades & Processing
Clothing Footwear and Soft Furnishings
Furniture Manufacture
Metal and Mining
Forestry Farming and Landcare
Fishing
Horticulture
Retail
Cooking
Hospitality
Tourism
Transport Trades Storage and Associated
Electrical and Electronic Engineering
Accounting and other Business Services
Management
Office and Clerical
Computing
Adult Literacy_ELS
Miscellaneous
Targeted Access and Participation Courses

TOTAL

Planned

4 000
35 900
25 100
20 000

2 000
61 000
56 256

-
500

2  000
4 500
5 000

25 000
63 076

2 314
35 000

4 615
7 295
1 000
9 000
6 000

-
20 400
13 500
38 600
59 492
47 000
11 700
10 600

570 848

01A
01B
02A
03A
03B
04A
04B
04C
05A
06A
07A
07B
09B
10B
10C
10D
12B
13A
13B
13C
14A
15A
16A
16B
16C
17A
19B
19D
19E

2003 2004

Planned

4 000
35 900
22 000

7 000
2 000

54 410
45 870

1 000
1 600

500
7 000
4 000

35 000
61 240

6 631
37 100

4 615
7 500
2 000
9 000
9 500
4 000

14 502
15 388
37 140
55 352
72 000

1 000
13 600

570 848

Actual

2 946
39 480
16 883

7 766
1 070

75 513
52 870

504
1 626

50
6 315
7 264

29 281
58 012

800
35 887

5 325
9 999
2 448

10 696
1 894

348
15 592
14 714
38 691
64 508
55 858

144
11 684

568 138

Actual%

72.90
109.97%

76.74%
110.94%
53.50%

138.79%
115.26%
50.40%

101.63%
10.00%
90.21%

181.60%
83.66%
94.73%
12.06%
96.73%

115.38%
133.32%
122.40%
118.84%
19.94%

8.70%
107.52%

95.62%
104.18%
116.54%
77.58%
14.40%
85.91%

99.53%

Actual%

104.08%
105.72%

88.76%
56.86%

205.50%
105.65%

97.39%
-

85.20%
0%

43.22%
100.10%

95.85%
118.97%
29.39%
81.02%
92.18%

132.27%
602.80%

76.24%
173.60%

-
84.69%
84.30%
99.78%

102.10%
114.66%
20.03%

147.74%

100.12%

Actual

4 163
37 952
22 278
11 372

4 110
64 446
54 785

-
426

0
1 945
5 005

23 962
75 042

680
28 358

4 254
9 649
6 028
6 862

10 416
-

17 277
11 380
38 515
60 743
53 820

2 343
15 660

571 471

WADT
Group

In the medium term, in response to labour trends,
employment growth projections and consultation
with regional stakeholders, training priorities include:
Community Services—particularly those in Aged
Care, Small Business Management, Land
Management, Rural Business Management, literacy
and numeracy and computer training, Automotive
and Skills Recognition and training for indigenous
people in Visual Arts and Cultural Tourism.

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s profile planning
reflects these trends.
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Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators

Efficiency Indicator

The efficiency indicator measures the overall cost
per Student Curriculum Hour (SCH) for total College
delivery.

Notes
The Cost per SCH Performance Indicator is a
measure of C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE’s
efficiency and is averaged across all programs and
is inclusive of all funding.

This measure is derived by dividing the Total
Operating Expenses, measured on an accrual basis,
by the total Student Curriculum Hours delivered. The
data comes from the financial statement.

Explanation
The overall Cost per Student Curriculum Hour for
2004 is $19.10. This is in excess of last year’s figure
of $18.20 and the 2004 target of $18.21.

Cost per SCH

$10

$0

$20

41% 48%41%

2004   2004       2003        2002
 Target

$15

$5

$18.20
$16.53
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In the year ending 31 December 2004

The accompanying financial statements for C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE have been prepared
in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 from proper
accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the year ending 31 December
2004 and the financial position as at 31 December 2004.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars
included in the Financial Statements misleading or inaccurate.

David Rampono Alison Woodman
Principal Accounting Officer Chair
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE Governing Council

C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

Peter Mahler
Managing Director
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE

28 February 2005



 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

 

4th Floor Dumas House  2 Havelock Street  West Perth 6005  Western Australia  Tel: 08 9222 7500  Fax: 08 9322 5664 

    
 
INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
C Y O’CONNOR COLLEGE OF TAFE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 
 
Audit Opinion 
In my opinion, 

(i) the controls exercised by the C Y O’Connor College of TAFE provide reasonable 
assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of moneys, the acquisition and 
disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions; and 

(ii) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly in accordance 
with applicable Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting 
requirements in Australia and the Treasurer’s Instructions, the financial position of 
the College at December 31, 2004 and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 

 
Scope 
The Governing Council’s Role 
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts and maintaining adequate 
systems of internal control, preparing the financial statements, and complying with the Financial 
Administration and Audit Act 1985 (the Act) and other relevant written law. 
 
The financial statements consist of the Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of 
Financial Position, Statement of Cash Flows, and the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
Summary of my Role 
As required by the Act, I have independently audited the accounts and financial statements to 
express an opinion on the controls and financial statements. This was done by looking at a 
sample of the evidence. 
 
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements is error 
free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises that an audit does not examine all evidence 
and every transaction. However, my audit procedures should identify errors or omissions 
significant enough to adversely affect the decisions of users of the financial statements. 
 

 
D D R PEARSON 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
March 31, 2005 
 



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2004 2003
for the year ended 31 December 2004

Notes $ $
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses from ordinary activities
Employee expenses 2 7,980,167               7,844,197               
Borrowing costs expense 3 1,341                      9,033                      
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 529,029                  558,519                  
Supplies and services 5 2,295,832               1,880,943               
Grants and subsidies 6 12,323                    9,331                      
Costs of disposal of non-current assets 7 278,572                  311,222                  
Capital user charge 9 725,521                  707,916                  
Other expenses from ordinary activities 10 19,485                    79,346                    
Total cost of services 11,842,270             11,400,508             

Revenues from ordinary activities
Revenue from operating activities
Fee for service 11 292,674                  315,499                  
Student fees and charges 12 699,411                  708,135                  
Ancillary trading 13 1,112                      36,345                    
Commonwealth grants and contributions 14 5,000                      -                          
Trading profit 8 36,289                    71,499                    
Revenue from non-operating activities
Interest revenue 68,216                    50,446                    
Proceeds on disposal of non-current assets 7 260,986                  277,998                  
Other revenues from ordinary activities 15 73,997                    109,636                  
Total revenues from ordinary activities 1,437,685               1,569,559               

NET COST OF SERVICES  (10,404,585)            (9,830,949)              

REVENUES FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds 16 10,091,168             9,318,034               
Resources received free of charge 17 616,389                  384,472                  
Liabilities assumed by the treasurer 18 5,059                      -                          
Total revenues from State Government 10,712,616             9,702,506               

308,031                  (128,443)                 
Net increase in asset 
revaluation reserve 29 1,132,909               154,539                  
Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments recognised 
directly in equity 1,132,909               154,539                  

Total changes in equity other than those resulting from 
transactions with WA State Government as owners 1,440,940               26,096                    

The Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

C Y O'Connor College of TAFE

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS



C Y O'Connor College of TAFE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2004 2004 2003

Notes $ $
Current Assets  
Cash assets 19 1,753,526               1,082,422               
Restricted cash assets 20       -                          65,851                    
Inventories 21 94,304                    69,330                    
Receivables 22 269,320                  318,605                  
Other assets 23 94,004                    118,075                  
Total Current  Assets 2,211,154               1,654,283               

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant, equipment and vehicles 24 9,939,247               8,901,061               
Total Non-Current Assets 9,939,247               8,901,061               

Total assets 12,150,401             10,555,344             

Current Liabilities
Payables 25 6,282                      81,785                    
Interest bearing liabilities 26 -                          23,997                    
Provisions 27 1,104,021               966,190                  
Other liabilities 28 331,101                  233,178                  
Total Current Liabilities 1,441,404               1,305,150               

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 27 277,387                  259,523                  
Total Non-Current Liabilities 277,387                  259,523                  

Total Liabilities 1,718,791               1,564,674               

NET ASSETS 10,431,610             8,990,670               

Equity
Reserves 29 1,368,142               235,233                  
Accumulated surplus 30 9,063,468               8,755,437               

TOTAL  EQUITY 10,431,610             8,990,670               

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2004 2004 2003

Notes $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Recurrent funding - Department of Education and Training 9,605,123                8,571,756                

Net cash provided by State Government 9,605,123                8,571,756                

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee costs (7,262,075)               (7,155,412)               
Supplies and services (1,526,734)               (1,551,639)               
Grants and subsidies (12,323)                    (9,331)                      
Borrowing costs (1,341)                      (9,033)                      
Capital user charge (892,900)                  (742,728)                  
GST payments on purchases (230,747)                  (218,320)                  
GST payments to taxation authority (34,568)                    -                           
Other payments (5,225)                      -                           

Receipts
Fee for service 292,674                   254,482                   
Student fees and charges  672,463                   708,275                   
Ancillary trading 1,112                       36,345                     
Interest received 63,734                     50,446                     
Commonwealth grants and contributions 5,000                       -                           
GST receipts on sales 121,345                   72,832                     
GST receipts from taxation authority 136,652                   160,416                   
Other receipts 133,260                   315,696                   

Net cash used in operating activities 31 (8,539,673)               (8,087,971)               

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the sale of non-current physical assets 247,036                   277,998                   
Purchase of non-current physical assets (697,187)                  (578,248)                  

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (450,151)                  (300,250)                  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
Finance lease repayment of principal (10,046)                    (131,062)                  

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (10,046)                    (131,062)                  

Net increase in cash held 605,253                   52,473                     

Cash assets at the beginning of the financial year 1,148,273                1,095,800                
   
CASH ASSETS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 32 1,753,526                1,148,273                

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

C Y O'Connor College of TAFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2004

The College is a statutory authority established under the
Vocational Education and Training (VET) Act 1996. Section 54 (2)
of the Act provides for the financial year of a College to begin on 1
January and end on 31 December of each year.
 
 1 Significant accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the
preparation of the financial statements.  Unless otherwise stated
these policies are consistent with those adopted in the previous
year.
 
 
General Statement

The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial
report which has been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board, and Urgent Issues Group (UIG) Consensus Views
as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are
modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application,
disclosure, format and wording. The Financial Administration and
Audit Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions are legislative provisions
governing the preparation of financial statements and take
precedence over Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting
Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, and UIG Consensus Views. The
modifications are intended to fulfil the requirements of general
application to the public sector, together with the need for greater
disclosure and also to satisfy accountability requirements.
 
If any such modification has a material or significant financial effect
upon the reported results, details of that modification and where
practicable, the resulting financial effect, are disclosed in individual
notes to these financial statements.
 
 
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting using the historical cost convention, with the
exception of certain assets and liabilities which, as noted, are
measured at fair value.
 
 (a) Depreciation of Non Current Assets
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically
depreciated over their useful lives in a manner which reflects the
consumption of their future economic benefits.  Depreciation is
calculated on the straight line basis, using rates which are reviewed
annually.  Expected useful lives for each class of depreciable asset
are:
Buildings 40 years
Motor Vehicles, Caravans and Trailers 4 to 8 years
Plant, Furniture, General Equipment 4 to 12 years
Computing, Communications & Software 3 to 5 years
 
 (b) Inventories
Inventories held for resale and are valued at the lower of cost and
the net realisable value.  Costs are assigned by the method most
appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority
being valued on a first in first out basis.  Inventories not held for
resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer required, in
which case they are valued at net realisable value.
 
 (c) Investments
Investments are brought to account at the lower of cost and
recoverable amount.  Interest revenues are recognised as they are
accrued.
  (d) Employee benefits
Annual Leave
This benefit is recognised at the reporting date in respect to
employees’ services up to that date and is measured at the nominal
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long Service Leave
The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12
months of the reporting date is recognised in the provisions for
employee benefits, and is measured at the nominal amounts
expected to be paid when the liability is settled. The liability for long
service leave expected to be settled more than 12 months from the
reporting date is recognised in the provisions for employee benefits,
and is measured as the present value of expected future payments
to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Consideration is given, when assessing expected
future payments, to expected future wage and salary levels
including relevant on costs, experience of employee departures and
periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using
market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds
with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
This method of measurement of the liability is consistent with the
requirements of Accounting Standard AASB 1028 “Employee
Benefits”.

Superannuation
Staff may contribute to either the Pension Scheme, a defined
benefits pension scheme now closed to new members, or to the
Gold State Superannuation Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum
scheme now also closed to new members. All staff who do not
contribute to either of these schemes become non contributory
members of the West State Superannuation Scheme, an
accumulation fund complying with the Commonwealth
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act
1992.  All of these schemes are administered by the Government
Employees Superannuation Board (GESB).  The superannuation
expense comprises the following elements:
 
 (i)  change in the unfunded employer’s liability in respect of current

employees who are members of the Pension Scheme
and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from
that Scheme to the Gold State Superannuation Scheme.

 
 (ii) employer contributions to the Gold State Superannuation

Scheme and West State Superannuation Scheme.
 
The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions
to retirees, as this does not constitute part of the cost of services
provided by the college in the current year.
 
Revenue “Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer” equivalent to (i) is
recognised under Revenues from State Government in the
Statement of Financial Performance as the unfunded liability
assumed by the Treasurer.  The GESB makes the benefit payments
and is recouped by the Treasurer.
 
The College is funded for employer contributions in respect of the
Gold State Superannuation Scheme and the West State
Superannuation Scheme.  These contributions were paid to the
GESB during the year. The GESB subsequently paid the employer
contributions in respect of the Gold State Superannuation Scheme
to the Consolidated Fund.
 
Employee benefit on-costs
Employee benefit on-costs, including payroll tax, are recognised
and included in employee benefit liabilities and costs when the
employee benefits to which they relate are recognised as liabilities
and expenses.
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  (e) Leases
The College’s rights and obligations under finance leases, which
are leases that effectively transfer to the College substantially all of
the risks and benefits incident to ownership of the leased items, are
initially recognised as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the
present value of the minimum lease payments.  The assets are
disclosed as plant, equipment and vehicles under lease, and are
depreciated to the Statement of Financial Performance over the
period during  which the College is expected to benefit from use of
the leased assets.  Minimum lease payments are allocated between
interest expense and reduction of the lease liability, according to the
interest rate implicit in the lease.
 
Finance lease liabilities are allocated between current and non-
current components.  The principal component of lease payments
due on or before the end of the succeeding year is disclosed as a
current liability, and the remainder of the lease liability is disclosed
as a non-current liability.
 
The College has entered into a number of operating lease
arrangement for property, plant and equipment, where the lessor
effectively retains all of the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the items held under the operating leases.  Equal
instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Statement of
Financial Performance over the lease term as this is representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.
 
 (f) Revenue Recognition
The funds received from the Department of Education and Training
in respect of the delivery of services forming part of the Delivery
Performance Agreement have been disclosed as State Funds under
‘Revenues from State Government’.   This revenue is recognised in
the period in which the College meets the terms of the
Agreement. The majority of operating revenue of the College
represents revenue earned from student fees and charges, fee for
service, ancillary services,  trading activities and Commonwealth
grants and subsidies, as well as revenue received from the
Department of Education and Training as a result of training
successfully tendered for under competitive tendering
arrangements.  Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of
other assets, and the rendering of services, is recognised when the
College has passed control of the goods or other assets, or delivery
of the service to the customer.
 
 (g) Grants and Other Contributions Revenue
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are
recognised as revenue when the College obtains control over the
assets comprising the contributions. Control is normally obtained
upon their receipt.
Contributions are recognised at their fair value.  Contributions of
services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.
 
 (h) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value
 Resources received free of charge or for nominal value which can
be reliably measured are recognised as revenues and as assets or
expenses, as appropriate, at fair value.
 
(i) Receivables
Receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are
due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date
of recognition.  Collectability of accounts receivable is reviewed on
an ongoing basis.  Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off.  A provision for doubtful debts is raised where some
doubt as to collection exists and in any event where the debt is
more than 120 days overdue.

  (j) Payables
Payables, including accruals not yet billed, are recognised when the
College becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a
purchase of assets or services.  Accounts payable are generally
settled within 30 days.
 
 (k) Accrued Salaries
Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at
the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay period for
that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial
year. The College considers the carrying amount approximates net
fair value.
 
(l) Revaluation of Land and Buildings, and Plant and
Equipment
The College has a policy of valuing land and buildings at fair value.
The annual revaluations of the College’s land and buildings
undertaken by the Valuer General’s Office for the Government
Property Register are recognised in the financial statements.
 
(m) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be
comparable with the figures in the current financial year.
 
 (n) Contributed Equity
Under UIG 38 “Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned
Public Sector Entities” transfers in the nature of equity
contributions must be designated by the Government (owners) as
contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer)
before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions in
the financial statements. Capital contributions have been
designated as contributions by owners and have been credited
directly to Contributed Equity in the Statement of Financial Position.
 
 (o) Acquisition of Assets
The cost method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets.
Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given up or
liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.
Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, are initially
recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Assets costing less than $1,000 are expensed in the year of
acquisition (other than where they form part of a group of similar
items which are significant in total).
 
 (p) Cash
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes
cash assets and restricted cash assets net of outstanding bank
overdrafts. These include short-term deposits that are readily
convertible to cash on hand and are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.
 
 (q) Rounding of amounts
Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the
nearest dollar.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2004



C. Y. O'Connor College of TAFE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2004 
 

    2004  2003  
     $   $  
2 Employee Expenses     
  Salaries     6,637,668      6,545,287 
  Superannuation        638,848         586,137 
  Long service Leave        222,914         135,460 
  Annual leave        (67,219)         40,072 
  Other staffing costs (I)        547,956         537,241 
        7,980,167      7,844,197 

  

(I) These employee expenses include superannuation, payroll tax, workers 
compensation premiums and other employment on-costs associated with the 
recognition of annual and long service leave liability. The related on-costs liability is 
included in employee benefit liabilities at Note 27.     

 
3 Borrowing costs expense     
  Finance lease finance charges           1,341            9,033 

             1,341            9,033 

        
4 Depreciation and amortisation expense     
  Depreciation     
  Buildings        217,514         199,241 
  Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers         67,496          63,755 
  Plant, furniture and general equipment         92,225          81,458 
  Computers, communication network and software        137,255          98,436 
  Leased plant, equipment and vehicles         14,539         115,629 
  Total depreciation        529,029         558,519 

 
5 Supplies and services     
   Consumables and minor equipment         357,573         291,289 
   Communication expenses         179,686         186,889 
   Utilities expenses          97,862          92,192 
   Consultancies and contracted services      1,011,452         595,367 
   Minor works         235,612         260,702 
   Repairs and maintenance          88,405          77,079 
   Operating lease and hire charges          85,863          67,487 
   Travel and passenger transport          46,448          41,309 
   Advertising and public relations          76,778         120,282 
   Supplies and services - other         116,153         148,347 

        2,295,832      1,880,943 
 

6 Grants and subsidies     

  Apprentices and trainees (travel, accommodation and other off the job assistance)         12,323            9,331 

            12,323            9,331 

 
7 Net loss on disposal of non-current assets     
  Motor Vehicles, Caravan and Marine Craft Proceeds        247,033         267,597 
  Written down value       (264,622)       (304,876) 

  Net Loss on Sale        (17,589)        (37,279) 
        

 
 



C. Y. O'Connor College of TAFE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2004 
 

    2004  2003  
 

  Plant, Furniture and General Equipment Proceeds                 1                  0 
  Written down value                -                  18 

  Net Profit on Disposal                 1                 18 
        
  Computers, Communication and Software Proceeds         13,952          10,401 
  Written down value        (13,950)          (6,364) 
  Net Profit on Disposal                 2            4,037 
        
  Gain on Disposal of Non-current Assets     
  Plant, furniture and general equipment                 1                 18 
  Computers, communication and software                 2            4,037 
                    3            4,055 
  (Loss) on Disposal of Non-current Assets     
  Motor vehicles, caravan and marine craft        (17,589)        (37,279) 

           (17,589)        (37,279) 

  Net loss        (17,586)        (33,224) 
 

8 Trading Profit     
  (a) Publications:     
  Sales                -           11,364 
  Cost of sales:     
  Opening inventory                -                  -   
  Purchases                -             9,940 

                   -             9,940 
  Closing inventory     
  Cost of goods sold                -             9,940 

  Trading Profit  - Publications                -             1,424 

 
  (b) Bookshop: 
  Sales        107,236         126,312 
  Cost of sales:     
  Opening inventory         69,330          64,330 
  Purchases        114,329         70,912 

 Closing inventory 
       183,659 

(94,304)   
135,242 
(69,330) 

 
   Cost of goods sold 89,355          65,912 

  Trading Profit (Loss) - Bookshop         17,881          60,400 

 
  (c) Cafeteria (Non Training Related)     
  Sales         59,340          48,004 
  Cost of sales:     
  Opening inventory                -             1,280 
  Purchases         40,932          37,049 
            40,932          38,329 
  Closing inventory     

  Cost of goods sold         40,932          38,329 

  Trading Profit (Loss) - Cafeteria         18,408            9,675 

            36,289          71,499 



C. Y. O'Connor College of TAFE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2004 
 

    2004  2003  
 

9 Capital user charge     
  Capital user charge expense        725,521         707,916 
        

  

A capital user charge rate of 8% has been set by the Government for 2004 (2003: 
8%) and represents the opportunity cost of capital invested in the net assets of the 
College used in the provision of outputs.  The charge is calculated on the net assets 
adjusted to take account of exempt assets.  Payments are made to the Department 
of Treasury and Finance on a quarterly basis.     

        
10 Other expenses from ordinary activities     
  Asset revaluation decrement                -           21,894 
  Doubtful debts expense           5,459            4,503 
  Student prizes and awards           4,878            5,172 
  Miscellaneous              490               748 
  Losses and write-offs            8,658          47,029 

            19,485          79,346 
 

11 Fee for service     
  Fee for service -general        238,333         304,118 
  Fee for service -Department of Education and Training         53,392          11,381 
 Fee for service - government (other than Department of Education and Training)              949  - 

           292,674         315,499 
        

12 Student fees and charges     
  Tuition fees        432,535         427,853 
  Enrolment fees         63,171          69,818 
  Resource fees        191,200         166,714 
  Other college fees         12,505          43,750 

           699,411         708,135 
 

13 Ancillary trading     
  Contracting and consulting                -           35,000 
  Other ancillary revenue           1,112            1,345 

              1,112          36,345 
 

14 Commonwealth grants and contributions     
  Commonwealth specific purpose grants - CGEA           5,000                 -   

             5,000                 -   
        

15 Other revenues from ordinary activities     
  Rental and facilities fees         29,166          14,159 
  Sponsorship and donations revenue           1,938          10,938 
  Miscellaneous revenue          42,893          84,539 

            73,997         109,636 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C. Y. O'Connor College of TAFE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2004 
 

    2004  2003  
 

16 State funds (received from Department of Education and Training)     
  Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA)     8,038,128      7,631,478 
  Superannuation        631,616         586,137 
  Other recurrent funds        688,441         229,414 
  Capital User Charge funding         725,521         707,916 
      10,083,706      9,154,945 
        
  Capital works transferred            7,462         163,089 

              7,462         163,089 

      10,091,168      9,318,034 

        
17 Resources received free of charge     
  Comprised of:     
  Department of Education and Training     
  * Corporate systems support        569,320         300,067 
  * Marketing and publications         17,028          17,505 
  * Human resources, industrial relations support         23,008          11,326 
  * Other           7,033            3,574 

           616,389         332,472 
  Office of the Auditor General - external audit services (a)                -           52,000 

           616,389         384,472 

  

Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal 
consideration, the College recognises revenues (except where the contribution of 
assets or services is in the nature of contributions by owners, in which case the 
College shall make a direct adjustment to equity) equivalent to the fair value of the 
assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined and 
which would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall be 
recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable.     

        

  

(a) Commencing with the 2004 audit, the Office of the Auditor General will be 
charging a fee for auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance 
indicators.  The fee for the 2004 audit ($55,000 plus GST) will be due and payable in 
2005.     

 
18 Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer     
  Superannuation           5,059                 -   

              5,059                 -   

  

Where a liability has been assumed by the Treasurer or other entity, the College 
recognises revenues equivalent to the amount of the liability assumed and an 
expense relating to the nature of the event or events that initially gave rise to the 
liability.     

        
19 Cash assets     
  Cash on hand            4,420            4,420 
  Cash at bank        570,782         177,190 
  Short term deposits (a)     1,178,324         900,812 

        1,753,526      1,082,422 

 (a) 2 month Bank term deposit at 5.34% maturing on 7 February 2005   

 
 
 
 



C. Y. O'Connor College of TAFE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS 

For the year ended 31 December 2004 
 

    2004  2003  
 

20 Restricted cash assets     
  Specific Capital Equipment and Minor Works (a)                -           65,851 

                   -           65,851 

  
Represents cash resources the uses of which are restricted, wholly or partially, by 
regulations or other externally imposed requirements.     

  
(a) Includes cash restricted for the purpose of College Training Profile activities as 
specified under section 48(a) of the Act - Capital Projects     

 
21 Inventories     
  Inventories held for resale:     
  Bookshop (at cost)         94,304          69,330 

            94,304          69,330 
        
22 Receivables     
 Current - includes trade debtors, student debtors and over-paid salaries   
  Receivables - trade        228,723         111,770 
  Receivables - students         21,524          45,973 
  Provision for doubtful debts        (25,422)        (19,963) 

  Net Receivables        224,825         137,780 
        
  CUC Receivable from the Department of Training                -          167,379 
  GST receivable         44,495          13,446 

           269,320         318,605 
        
23 Other assets     
  Current     
  Prepayments         89,522         118,075 
  Other - Accrued Interest on Term Deposits           4,482                 -   

            94,004         118,075 
 

24 Property, plant, equipment and vehicles     
  Land     
  At fair value (a)         46,900          46,900 

            46,900          46,900 
  Buildings     
  At fair value (a)     9,021,741      8,290,841 
  Accumulated depreciation        (217,514)       (448,370) 

        8,804,227      7,842,470 
  Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers      
  At cost         479,679         455,754 
  Accumulated depreciation        (78,112)        (76,636) 
           401,567         379,118 
  Plant, furniture and general equipment     
  At cost         782,324         684,225 
  Accumulated depreciation       (414,097)       (328,622) 
           368,227         355,603 
  Leased plant, furniture and general equipment                -           21,440 
  Accumulated depreciation                -          (18,939) 
                   -             2,501 
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    2004  2003  
 

  Computer equipment, communication network and software     
  At cost         710,565         513,215 
  Accumulated depreciation       (392,239)       (264,734) 
           318,326         248,481 
  Leased computer equipment and communication network                -          105,536 
  Accumulated depreciation                -          (79,548) 
                   -           25,988 

        9,939,247      8,901,061 
        
(a) The valuation of land was performed on 1 July 2003 in accordance with an 

independent valuation by the Valuer General's Office.  Fair value has been 
determined on the basis of current use value of land and the depreciated 
replacement cost of buildings. The fair value of acquisitions subsequent to valuation 
date have been based on their cost.     

 
  Reconciliations  

  
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at 
the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below.  

 

 2004 Land Buildings Leasehold 
Improvements 

Motor 
Vehicles, 
Caravans 

and Trailers 

Plant, 
Furniture 

and 
General 

Equipment 

Computer 
Equipment, 

Communication
Network and 

Software 

Total 

                  

  
Carrying amount at start 
of year  

   
46,900  

  
7,842,472     28,489 

  
379,118       355,603         248,480 

  
8,901,061 

  Additions  
   

-   
  

46,360            -   
  

354,567       104,849         207,101 
  

712,877 

  Disposals  
   

-                -      (13,949) 
  

(264,622)               -                  -   
  

(278,571) 

  
Depreciation and 
Amortisation  

   
-   

  
(217,514)    (14,539) 

  
(67,496)       (92,225)       (137,255) 

  
(529,029) 

  Revaluation Increments  
   

-   
  

1,132,909            -                     -                 -                  -   
  

1,132,909 
  Carrying amount at end 

of year  
   

46,900  
  

8,804,227            -   
  

401,567       368,227         318,326 
  

9,939,247 
                  

 
25 Payables     
  Current      
  Trade payables           6,282          81,785 

             6,282          81,785 
26 Interest Bearing Liabilities     
  Current     
  Finance lease liabilities                -           23,997 

                   -           23,997 

  
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the 
lessor in the event of default     
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    2004  2003  
 

27 Provisions     
  Employee Benefits     
  Current     
  Annual leave (a)        310,184         377,403 
  Long service leave (a)        793,837         588,787 

        1,104,021         966,190 
  Non-current     
  Annual leave (a)     
  Long service leave (a)        277,387         259,523 

           277,387         259,523 

  

(a) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the 
payment of employment on-costs including superannuation, payroll tax and workers 
compensation premiums.  The liability for such on-costs is included here. The 
associated expense is included under 'other staffing costs' (under Employee 
expenses) at note 2.     

    

  
The College considers the carrying amount of employee benefits approximates the 
net fair value.     

        
  Employee Benefit Liabilities     

  
The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised and included in the financial 
statements is as follows:     

  Provision for employee benefits:     
  Current     1,104,021         966,190 
  Non-current        277,387         259,523 

        1,381,408      1,225,713 
 

28 Other liabilities     
  Current      
  Student Fees and Charges received in advance           7,731            6,599 
  Accrued expenditure        305,025         226,579 
  Accrued salaries and related costs         18,345                 -   

           331,101         233,178 
29 Reserves     
  Asset Revaluation Reserve (a)     
  Opening balance     
  Net revaluation decrements        235,233          80,694 
  Land                -            (6,100) 
  Buildings     1,132,909         160,639 

  Closing balance     1,368,142         235,233 

        

  
(a) The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on 
the revaluation of non-current assets, as described in accounting policy note 1(l)     

 
30 Accumulated surplus     
  Opening balance     8,755,437      8,891,680 
  Change in net assets         308,031        (128,443) 
  Adjustment to assets recognised in prior years                -            (7,800) 

  Closing balance     9,063,468      8,755,437 
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31 Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cashflows provided by / (used in) 
operating activities 

    
  Net Cost of Services   (10,404,585)    (9,830,949) 
        
  Non-cash items:     
  Depreciation and amortisation expense        529,029         558,519 
  Doubtful debts expense           5,459            4,503 
  Resources received free of charge        621,448         384,472 
  Net (gain) / loss on disposal on non-current assets         17,586          33,224 
  Losses and write-offs (excludes cash shortages/thefts of money)           8,658          47,029 
  Asset revaluation decrement                -           21,894 
  Superannuation expense (Notional)        631,616         586,137 
        
  (Increase)/decrease in assets:     
  Current receivables        (86,816)        (36,942) 
  Inventories        (24,974)          (3,720) 
  Prepayments         28,552            1,682 
  Other current assets          (4,482)         12,892 
  Non-current receivables     
        
  Increase/(decrease) in liabilities     
  Payables         (75,503)        (11,333) 
  Income received in advance/grants and advances           1,131            2,088 
  Current provisions        137,831         205,292 
  Other current Liabilities         64,688         (26,315) 
  Non-current Provisions         17,864         (51,371) 
        
  Net GST receipts/(payments)          (7,175)         14,928 

  Net cash used in operating activities    (8,539,673)    (8,087,970) 
 

32 Reconciliation of cash     

  
Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:     

        
  Cash assets     1,753,526      1,082,422 
  Restricted cash assets                -           65,851 

        1,753,526      1,148,273 
33 Commitments for expenditure     
  (a) Finance lease commitments     
  Commitments in relation to finance leases are payable as follows:     
  Within 1 year                -           23,997 
  Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years                -                  -   
  Later than 5 years                -                  -   
  Minimum finance lease payments                -           23,997 
  Included in the financial statements as:     
  Current                -           23,997 
  Non-current                -                  -   

                   -           23,997 
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    2004  2003  
 

  (b) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments     
   Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:     
  Within 1 year           6,346          21,622 
  Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years                -           10,307 
  Later than 5 years                -                  -   

              6,346          31,929 
34 Explanatory Statement     

 

(a) Significant variations between actual revenues and expenditures for the 
financial year and revenues and expenditures for the immediately preceding 
financial year.   

    

 

Significant variations in revenues and expenditures between actual results and the 
corresponding items of the preceding year are detailed below.  Significant variations 
are considered to be those greater than 10% or $50,000.   

 
    2004 2003 Variance Variance 
  Expenditure $ $ $ % 

  Employee expenses    7,980,167     7,844,197  
  

135,970 1.73% 

  
Greater salary and wage costs and increased superannuation 
expenditure compared with 2003.           

            

  Borrowing costs expense          1,341           9,033  
  

(7,692) -85.16% 
 Declined due to the expiry of finance leases part way through 2004.     
            

  Supplies and services    2,295,832     1,880,943  
  

414,889 22.06% 

  

Greater than expected resources received free of charge for the 
Department of Training, particularly in the area of Information and 
Systems Support.         

            
  Grants and subsidies        12,323           9,331            2,992 32.07% 
  Greater number of apprentice recoups than previous year.           
            

  Costs of disposal of non-current assets       278,572        311,222  
  

(32,650) -10.49% 
  Fewer motor vehicles disposals in 2004.          
            
  Other expenses from ordinary activities        19,485         79,346          59,862 75.44% 

  
Lower debtors and stock write-offs than 2003 and no revaluation 
decrement in 2004.          

 
 

    2004 2003 Variance Variance 
  Revenues $ $ $ % 

 

  Ancillary trading          1,112         36,345  
  

(35,233) -96.94% 
  No contracting and consultancy income was generated in 2004.          
            

  Trading profit        36,289         71,499  
  

(35,210) -49.25% 
  Lower turnover in Bookshop and no sales of publications in 2004.          
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  Interest revenue        68,216         50,446          17,770 35.23% 

  

Higher cash balances in 2004 compared with 2003 resulted in greater 
surplus cash for term deposits, which yielded higher interest 
revenues.         

            

  Other revenues from ordinary activities        73,997        109,636  
  

(35,639) -32.51% 

  
Lower sponsorship and donations revenues and significant reduction 
in GEHA recoups compared with 2003.          

            

  State funds  10,091,168     9,318,034  
  

773,134 8.30% 

  

Greater DPA funding, greater special purpose grants for Training 
Technology, Science & Technology funds for Aquaculture TLSAG 
and Youth Co-ordinator funding.         

            

  Resources received free of charge       616,389        384,472  
  

231,917 60.32% 

  

Greater than expected resources received free of charge for the 
Department of Training, particularly in the area of Information and 
Systems Support.         

            

  
(b) Significant variations between estimates and actual results 
for the financial year         

  

Details and reasons for significant variations between estimates and 
actual results are detailed below.  Significant variations are 
considered to be those greater than 10% of budget (or $50,000).         

           
 

    2004 2004 Variance Variance 
    Budget Actual   
  Expenditure $ $ $ % 
            
  Borrowing costs expense             665           1,341               676 101.65% 

  
Underestimation of the interest expense on finance leases in 
estimates.         

            

  Supplies and services    1,739,630     2,295,832  
  

556,202 31.97% 

  

Greater than expected resources received free of charge for the 
Department of Training, particularly in the area of Information and 
Systems Support.         

            
  Grants and subsidies          3,563         12,323            8,760 245.86% 
  Greater number of apprentice recoups than originally estimated.           
            

  Costs of disposal of non-current assets               -          278,572  
  

278,572   

  
Estimate for costs of disposals previously included in other expenses 
from ordinary activities.  Refer below.         
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  Other expenses from ordinary activities       336,030         19,485  
  

(316,545) -94.20% 

 
Estimate included cost of disposal of non-current assets separately 
disclosed above in actuals. Fewer disposals than expected.     

            
  Revenues         

  Ancillary trading          2,000           1,112  
  

(888) -44.40% 
  Estimate was based upon higher base from 2003.          
            
  Commonwealth grants and contributions               -             5,000            5,000   
  CGEA grant not expected in 2004.         
            
  Trading profit        16,320         36,289          19,969 122.36% 
  Lower bookshop sales income than expected.         
            
  Interest revenue        37,556         68,216          30,660 81.64% 

  

Higher cash balances in 2004 compared with 2003 resulted in greater 
surplus cash for term deposits, which yielded higher interest 
revenues.         

            

  Other revenues from ordinary activities        94,000         73,997  
  

(20,003) -21.28% 

  
Higher estimates of sponsorship and donations revenues and GEHA 
recoups than actually received.          

           

  State funds    9,107,154   10,091,168  
  

984,014 10.80% 

  

Increased funding for superannuation and greater special purpose 
grants for Training Technology, Science & Technology funds for 
Aquaculture TLSAG and Youth Co-ordinator funding.         

            

  Resources received free of charge       406,228        616,389  
  

210,161 51.73% 

  

Greater than expected resources received free of charge for the 
Department of Training, particularly in the area of Information and 
Systems Support.         

            
  Liabilities assumed by the treasurer                -             5,059            5,059   

 
Notional superannuation expense per treasury, not included in 
estimates.     

 
35 Financial Instruments 
  (a) Interest Rate Risk Exposure 
 The following table details the College's exposure to interest rate risk at reporting date. 
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      Fixed Interest Rate   

    

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate 
Variable 

Interest Rate 
Less than 1 

year 
1 to 5 
years 

More than 5 
years 

Non-
Interest 
Bearing Total 

  2004 % $ $ $  $ $ 
  Financial Assets               

  Cash assets 4.58%      575,203 
  

1,178,324 
  

-                  -                  -  
  

1,753,526 

  Receivables                -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

269,321 
  

269,321 

  Other financial assets                -                     -   
  

-                  -           94,005         94,005 

           575,203 
  

1,178,324 
  

-                  -   
  

363,325 
  

2,116,852 

  Financial Liabilities               

  Payables                -                     -   
  

-                  -                  -                  -   

  Employee benefits                -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

1,381,408 
  

1,381,408 

  Other liabilities                -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

331,101 
  

331,101 

                   -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

1,712,509 
  

1,712,509 

  
Net Financial Assets 
(Liabilities)        575,203 

  
1,178,324 

  
-                  -   

  
(1,349,184) 

  
404,343 

                  

   Fixed Interest Rate Maturity   

    
Weighted 
Average 

Variable 
Interest 

Less Than 
1 year 

1 to 5 
years 

More than 5 
years 

Non-
Interest Total 

    
Effective 
Interest Rate    Bearing  

    Rate       
  2003 % $ $ $  $ $ 
  Financial Assets               

  Cash assets 2.62%      181,516 
  

900,812 
  

-                  -                  -   
  

1,082,328 

  Restricted cash assets 4.83%        65,851                   -   
  

-                  -                  -           65,851 

  Receivables                -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

151,226 
  

151,226 

  Other financial assets                -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

285,454 
  

285,454 

           247,367 
  

900,812 
  

-                  -   
  

436,680 
  

1,584,859 

  Financial Liabilities               

  Payables                -                     -   
  

-                  -           75,685         75,685 

  Finance Lease 5.85%              -   
  

23,997 
  

-                  -                  -           23,997 

  Employee benefits                -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

1,225,713 
  

1,225,713 

  Other liabilities                -                     -   
  

-                  -   
  

239,278 
  

239,278 

                   -   
  

23,997 
  

-                  -   
  

1,540,677 
  

1,564,674 

  
Net Financial Assets 
(Liabilities)        247,367 

  
876,815 

  
-                  -   

  
(1,103,997)         20,186 
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  (b) Credit Risk Exposure 
  All financial liabilities are unsecured. 
    

  
The carrying amounts recorded on the financial statements represents the College’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to 
those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position. 

   
  (c) Net Fair Values 

 
The carrying amount of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities recorded in the Financial Statements are not materially different 
from their net fair values. 

   
 

36 Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority and Senior Officers 
  Remuneration of members of the Accountable Authority 

  
The number of members of the Accountable Authority whose total of fees, salaries, 
superannuation and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are: 

 
    $     
    $1 - $10,000                 3                  1 
    $130,001 - $140,000                 1    
    $140,001 - $150,000                -                   1 

 
The total remuneration of the members of the 
Accountable Authority is:         140,611 143,531 

 

  
The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the College 
in respect of members of the Accountable Authority. 

   
 No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme. 

    
  Remuneration of Senior Officers 

  

The number of Senior Officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable 
Authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits receivable for the 
financial year, fall within the following bands are: 

 
    $     
    $20,001 - $30,000     
    $40,001 - $50,000                 1                 -   
    $90,001 - $100,000                 1                  3 
    $100,001 - $110,000                 2                 -   
          

  The total remuneration of senior officers is:          284,654         279,038 

          

  

The superannuation included here represents the 
superannuation expense incurred by the College in 
respect of Senior Officers other than senior officers 
reported as members of the Accountable Authority.      

          

  
No Senior Officers are members of the Pension 
Scheme.       
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37 Supplementary Financial Information     
  Write-Offs     
  Public property                 1                 -   
  Bad Debts           8,659          12,691 
  Inventory            24,404 
  Loses Through Theft, Defaults And Other Causes     

  
Losses of public and other moneys and public and other property through theft, 
default or otherwise                -             4,761 

  Gifts of Public Property     

  Gifts of Public Property provided by the College           4,878            5,172 

        
38 Segment Information     

  
The college has only one segment (as defined by Treasurer's Instruction 1101 (2) 
(viii) and that is Vocational Education and Training Delivery.     

  
The college operates in one geographical segment being within the State of Western 
Australia.     

39 Related Bodies     
  The College has no related bodies.     

40 Affiliated Bodies     
  The College has no affiliated bodies.     

41 Remuneration of Auditor     
 Remuneration of the Auditor General for the financial year is as follows:   

  Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators  55,000         52,000 
 

42 The Impact of Adopting International Accounting Standards 

  

The Australian Accounting Standards Board is adopting the Standards of the International Accounting Standards Board for 
application to reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005.  Accounting Standard AASB 1‘First-time Adoption of Australian 
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards’ prescribes transitional provisions for first-time adopters.  AASB 1047 
‘Disclosing the Impacts of Adopting Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards’ requires financial reports 
to disclose information about the impacts of any changes in accounting policies in the transition period leading up to the adoption 
date. 

   
  a) Managing the Transition 

 
The transition to Australian equivalents to IFRS is being managed by the College via participation in the TAFE-wide Finance 
Manager forum.  Finance managers for all TAFE colleges participate in regular meetings. 

 

The agenda of these meetings include discussion of IFRS transition issues and includes input for the Department of Education and 
Training.  The results of this forum are brought back to the College by the Finance Manager for discussion and action at the regular 
Executive Management Team meetings. 

    
  b) Key changes to Accounting policies  

 

(i) Provision for Annual Leave  - Under AASB 119 Employees Benefits, compensated absences such as annual leave and sick leave 
that is likely to be paid more than 12 months from the reporting date are to be recorded at their present value. Currently all annual 
leave is provided for at nominal rates of pay plus on costs and sick leave/personal leave is not provided for as it is non-vesting leave.  

  

(ii) Software -  Under AASB 138 Intangible Assets - software that is separable and not an integral to the functioning of the computing 
hardware is to be classified as intangible assets. Software purchases are currently disclosed as part of Property Plant and 
Equipment. 

    
  c) Financial impacts 

  
The college council are of the opinion that the key differences in the College's accounting policies that will arise from the adoption 
are not likely to result in a material financial impact of the Colleges' position or performance. 

    

  
Annual Leave - The value of annual leave in excess of four weeks is not considered to be material.  The present value at current 
government bond rates will not be materially different than current nominal rates disclosed in note 27 above.  

    

  
Software - Software included in property plant and equipment at note 24 above has a written down value of less than $100 at the 
current reporting date.   
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College Awards
C.Y. O’Connor College of TAFE was a finalist in both
the “Pretzel Logic Access & Equity Award” at the
Western Australian Training Excellence Awards and
“Best Regional Program Award” for the Adult
Learners Week  Awards.  The College also received
Essential Personnel Recognition Awards for
“Employers Demonstrating Excellent Commitment
to People with a Disability”.

Fogarty Foundation Youth Scholarships
Bronson Wade
Amalie Ricker
Beverley Stott
Douglas Holland
Ebony McLennan
Rachel Beilken
Diane Lynam

Scholarships and Awards

Scholarships and Awards

Staff Awards/Scholarships
Career and Employability Development Course
Scholarship
Bernie Moore

Premier’s Teacher of the Year Award
Dr Sak Sarangapani

CYOC Lecturer of the Year
Dr Sak Sarangapani

Managing Director’s Award
Rosemarie Lenane

Innovation Award
Lesley Bellamy & The Horticulture Section, Moora
Campus

Staff Excellence Awards
• Lynley Cannon, Finance Manager

• Aboriginal School Based Traineeship Team (Kapi
Sak, Leonie Dick, Ben Dee Ree, Mickey
Zampichelli, Liz Shilcock, Rosemarie Lenane,
Deanne Wilson, Teresa O’Brien, James Paxman,
Tracy Dunn, Janet Munday, Kristy Cooper, Teresa
McGrechan)

• Daniel Christmass, Finance Officer

• Ray Clune, Corporate Technician

• Jeni Dodd, Administration Officer

• Adrian Harley, Art Lecturer

• Janet Munday, Lecturer

Governing Council Award
Cheryl Hugall

Citizenship Award
Krystal Abernethy

Employer Award
Kim Maddock

Business and Social Sciences Award
Shirley Bradshaw

Primary Industries
Simeon Wilson

Award Presentation at Graduation

Staff Award Recipients

Student Graduation Awards
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Campus contact details:

Northam (Central Administration)
Lot 1 Hutt Street
PO Box 498
Northam  WA  6401
Ph:  9622 3905

Moora
242 Berkshire Valley Road
PO Box 329
Moora  WA  6510
Ph:  9651 1894

Narrogin
59 Fortune Street
PO Box 457
Narrogin  WA  6312
Ph:  9881 3366

Merredin
42 Throssell Road
PO Box 542
Merredin  WA  6415
Ph:  9041 3999

Kellerberrin
118 Massingham Street
PO Box 202
Kellerberrin  WA  6410
Ph:  9045 4183

Freecall 1800 627 256
www.cyoc.wa.edu.au


